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CHAIR KING: .. .(gavel). . . Okay. I'm going to go ahead and call the meeting to order at
10:11 on October 11th. And Alice Lee is on her way, I'm told, with doughnuts so but
we'll go ahead and take public testimony. And I apologize for having to use the
Chambers. The Committee Room is booked up for the entire month with the
Clerk's Office with the elections work that they're doing in there. So I don't like these
to be so formal, but this is our option today. But see, who .. .I guess I'll ask Traci
since we don't have a full staff for this. Do we have testifiers signed up?
MS. FUJITA: No.
CHAIR KlNG: Did you check on the district offices?
MS. FUJITA: Yeah. But you might have to call the.
CHAIR KlNG: Okay. Districts, we have no testimony. We have Jasee in the Chambers. Did
you want to testify, Mr. Law?
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.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KING: Oh look, good morning.
MR. LAW: Aloha kakahiaka. Jasee Law from Kula. Thank you for being here Alice, 'cause
you're the Chair-COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Only for you.
MR. LAW: --or the Chair of the Water Board [sic]. I was going to say something about the
water in the Chambers. I think I said that last time. East Maui Streams is on the
meeting for the EACP Committee.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, but it's not on our agenda for today.
MR. LAW: Isn't items in the ... cultural items in the Council Chamber, and that's kind of
what I'm talking about.
CHAIR KING: Oh, okay.
MR. LAW: So somebody could like just get some blue paint and put like streams on the
picture there, that would be nice, even if we don't have any flowing water in here.
Maybe the blue carpet is for the .. .it's like symbolic of the ocean, I don't know.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
MR. LAW: Aloha, everybody.
CHAIR KING: Aloha. Anything else?
MR. LAW: Mr. Hokama, you be good now.
CHAIR KING: Anything else? Okay. Yeah, and before I close testimony just, you know,
we're in this like different format so I'm going to go ahead and ... we don't have a full
staff. Clerk's Office doesn't staff Chair's meetings so I'm going to go ahead and
introduce everybody myself and just say good morning because I forgot to do that.
And we'll start with our Council Vice-Chair Keani Rawlins-Fernandez. Thank you for
being here.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Aloha kakahiaka.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Aloha kakahiaka.
CHAIR KING: And our Councilmember Pro Tern, Councilmember Tasha Kama, aloha
kakahiaka.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Aloha kakahiaka, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Thank you for being here. And Councilmember Yuki Lei Sugimura.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Good morning.
CHAIR KING: Good morning. Councilmember Tamara Paltin.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Aloha kakahiaka, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Aloha kakahiaka. Councilmember Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR KING: Good morning. Councilmember Alice Lee
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: When I'm in a rush I say, good morning.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Good morning. Councilmember Mike Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aloha kakahiaka, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Aloha kakahiaka. And Councilmember Shane Sinenci.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Aloha kakahiaka.
CHAIR KING: Aloha kakahiaka. Thank you to everybody who brought food into the
Chambers to give us sustenance during this special meeting since it's our third
meeting... will be our second meeting of the month, but we11 have three meetings this
month. And are there any other testifiers in the Chambers? If not, is there any
objection to closing testimony?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Testimony is closed .
. . .END OF PUBUC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR KING: In the Chambers, for support right now we have our Office of Council Services
Director Traci Fujita.
MS. FUJITA: Good morning.
CHAIR KING: Good morning. My office staff, Kate Griffiths.
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MS. GRIFFITHS: Good morning.
CHAIR KING: Good morning. And we have .. .I can't ...
MS. YAP: Rayna Yap.
CHAIR KING: No, I know Rayna, but I can't remember your last name.
MS. YAP: Yap.
CHAIR KING: Rayna Yap with .. .I don't know, I always call everybody by their first name.
Today we also, to start out, we have Mark Middleton from our Risk Management
Services, and we have our County Clerk, Josiah Nishita, who is back from his
paternity leave, and congratulations again on your third boy. You're working on a
baseball team there ...
ALL: .. .(applause) ...
CHAIR KING: Appreciate you being back. And before we start, I just wanted to give my
opening remarks since we don't really have that on the other agendas, and I wanted to
say to the Councilmembers, personally for myself, that I feel like there's been a lot of
tension on the Council in the last couple weeks and I want to apologize for any, any
impatience on my part that led to back and forth and, you know, some of the small
things that should have been taken care of easily. And we had some issues with
protocol and procedures, so we're going to try to clean some of that up. I did get a
report from an outside entity, actually it was Civil Beat that was checking on some
reports for our Council that said that they have not been posted in a timely manner,
either, I think about five or so reports that have a certain amount of days to get
posted. So we're going to be looking into all that and trying to streamline everything.
But I just, you know, I take full responsibility for any things that may have seem like
infractions or anything and we'll try to do a reset button and start all over again and
get things ... and start to try to do things by the book. And we're-COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair.
CHAIR KING: --starting that out with the update on the HIOSH Chamber safety issues-COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Can I ask a question?
CHAIR KING: --which ... oh, Miss ...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Before you leave that Civil Beat, what was the issue, what
were the reports, or what... can you share that with all of us?
CHAIR KING: I don't, yeah, I don't have that because it's not on the agenda, I don't have that
actually in front of me right now. It was an e-mail that we are .. .I think. .. did that
come to Council Services, the e-mail, or did it come to myself?
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MS. YAP: Mike Moran's testimony?
CHAIR KING: No, there was a letter from Civil Beat. ..
MS. DEL ROSARIO (from the gallery): I'll get it to you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Michelle will get it and send it to us. And some of it was committee
report stuff and some of it was ... and it was not a matter of not the report's not being
done, they weren't online in a timely manner when they're supposed to be. So these
are the things that have been going on for a while apparently and they made us aware
of it. They didn't make a complaint about it, they just wanted to make us aware. So
that's kind of one of those things that we have so many deadlines and Sunshine Law
issues that we have to pay attention to, and I need to start paying better attention to
some of those deadlines.

UPDATE ON HIOSH CHAMBER SAFETY ISSUES
(MARK MIDDLETON, RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES)

CHAIR KING: So with that, Mr. Middleton, do you want to make the presentation on the
HIOSH Chamber issues-MR. MIDDLETON: Alright. Thank you, Chair, good morning.
CHAIR KING: -- that did start out with a formal complaint.
MR. MIDDLETON: That did start out with a complaint. I've got a small presentation, short
presentation in front of each of you called the HIOSH Chamber Follow Up Action
Overview. I'm just going to spend a couple of minutes on that and then take any
questions you may have. Hawaii OSHA, which is also called HIOSH, filed a complaint
or received a complaint from an employee or the public on July or in the middle of
July. They contacted the County of Maui on July 22nd and asked some questions and
asked for some paperwork. They followed that up with an onsite inspection and that
confirmed what the complaint was and the noncompliance issue, and it has to do with
the egress routing and the exit routing. There's been a lot of history in the past, and I
don't want to necessarily hash through all of that, but I kind of just want to talk about
the things that they brought up and to talk about the plans at which we can address
those and get into compliance. So basically, modification of the emergency exit routes
provides the best solution to the County Council. There's a couple other options, but
it involves changing and losing the security that we have at the front lobby. So by
adding exits to each of these two sides and the rear of the Chambers, that meets the
compliance and it allows us to still have access and control for your offices to be
separated from the public. The proposed solution was routed to the Councilmembers,
there's no changes to that proposal, hopefully you all saw that. The current deadline
for the project completion is November 4 1h. We've been working with the County
Clerk's Office and Chair King. And we've got all of the quotes and we've got the
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funding with the County Clerk's Office for this. So basically, just the high-level
changes I just mentioned. The exit doors on the northeast double doors that are the
ones that go into the office areas were the complaint. HIOSH requires that no locking
features, no special equipment, nothing prevents an exit by people pushing on the
crash bars in an event of an emergency. Currently, we have a couple of things in
there because of the card access and the security that makes that a non-compliance.
So what we're going to have to do is we're going to change the route. So instead of the
route being out of here and either down the stairs by the elevator and then out
through those double doors and back around to the back, we're going to make that
exit then exit out--so we need to change and reverse the doors--so that flows out. It'll
still be the same entrance for you all, so you'll have card-key access and the phones,
and everything will basically remain the same. The doors will just open the other
direction. We'll demarcate that floors so that nobody gets injured when people are
corning through and control the speed of which the door opens. It'll also require that
these two doors are tumed into exits, the two outside doors here. Those will need to
be reversed as well because the traffic for incidents needs to travel with the evacuation
route. If there is a fire or smoke, something happens on the 7th floor or 4th floor and if
the smoke comes up and it eliminates the exit on that side of the building, people need
to be able to get out this side, and the way it's currently set up with the locks, it would
possibly trap people that wouldn't be able to get out. And as people panic, they kind
of stack up and causes a lot of problems. This is something that the U.S. has gone
through many times over the past decades. So basically, those are the changes other
than we also have some exit signs that will change with that. The maps will change,
and the emergency evacuation planning and training will be tweaked a little bit. So
I've got some backup information in that little presentation as well, but I'm ready to
take questions if you have some.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So these doors will be exits-MR. MIDDLETON: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: --and you will be able to use your key card to get out?
MR. MIDDLETON: Correct. And in an emergency, they would be able to push the bar-COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Without a key card?
MR. MIDDLETON: --without a key card.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Okay.
MR. MIDDLETON: We do have some options that will involve or can allow alarming those.
Those doors will only have access when the Chamber's open. So when the Chamber's
closed, then we've got sufficient exits which is just right out the front, so no problems
there. We will want to work on a little bit of the dynamics of the door alarming when it
gets out because we don't want people to forget and have alarms going off and, you
know, be scaring people either in your offices or having interruptions to the meetings.
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So we've got a few ways to do that with keys. We can shut it off. And so we've got
some plans to address those.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So there's an assumption then that m an emergency, even
without a key card, you're going to get in ...
MR. MIDDLETON: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: ... and get out, I mean.
MR. MIDDLETON: Correct, correct.
CHAIR KING: Get out of the Chamber.
MR. MIDDLETON: Get out of the Chamber and to the rear exit.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So what, what triggers that emergency so that the doors would
be triggered to open?
MR. MIDDLETON: The doors are not allowed to be triggered like that or locked. Because
emergencies can involve more than just fire or smoke, a person pushing that panic
hardware, which is that like lever like we see on the outside doors here, the double
doors, them simply pushing it will open it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Okay.
MR. MIDDLETON: We're going to have an alarm just so that we know if there's an intrusion
or somebody comes in, I mean we could go without an alarm, but it might be nice to
have an alarm just so people inside are aware that some body's come in without a key
card access.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Okay.
CHAIR KING: So we're assuming that, that we only need ... we need that for people to get out
if they're in here. But on the days when there's nothing happening here, those doors
should be locked so there should be nobody in here getting access to your offices
through those doors. That's what the alarm would be for ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Right.
CHAIR KING: .. .if someone was in here ... somehow snuck in here or stayed in here or
something like that and tried to get access when there wasn't a meeting in process,
and no one was there to see them. And then, Mark, did you talk about the issue of
the two doors on the fronts of those halls needing to both open out?
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MR. MIDDLETON: Yeah, the one is already functioning exactly as we'll have this other side
so they'll be consistent, so we need to add an exit sign on each of those on the inside
and change a couple exit signs, but yeah.
CHAIR KING: Right.
MR. MIDDLETON: Because, just for your information, HIOSH code changes, and HIOSH is
about employees not just general public, so that's why it's a little bit different than
just the normal building inspection and the normal fire prevention, there's an added
layer of requirements. But with this room not being used we no longer have a room
with over potentially 50 occupants, so we don't have that requirement so that's why
we're able to keep 'em within the room.
CHAIR KING: Alright, Ms. Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: I'm sorry, I'm not sure if I heard this correctly, but did you say
after hours those doors will. . .if we come in, we forgot something, or we want to check
our computer or something and we try and go out it's going to trigger an alarm?
MR. MIDDLETON: If you come in, you can use your card key. It will bypass the alarm. So
as long as people are using their card key in or out, it'll bypass that alarm. Now if
people forget when they come in or our plan is to only alarm the panic hardware side
of it, okay; so that should reduce some of our false alarms. There might a little
education period, people sneak out. But generally, they're locked now. So I think
you're all kind of used to swiping it. I'm not going to say that we're not going to get a
couple of false alarms though. So, you know, if those are crazy, we can change that.
And like I said, we can have a key that actually shuts off that alarm. That alarm is
not a requirement, regulatory requirement. It's just something that would be an
added feature for us.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: And then so we would swipe to come in and swipe to go out?
MR. MIDDLETON: Correct.
CHAIR KING: Oh. We have to swipe to come ... 'cause right now we don't swipe to come in.
MR. MIDDLETON: Right now, you don't swipe to come in. We may be able to set it up that
way, yeah. I'll check with our vendor.
CHAIR KING: And, you know, you kind of have to have your card anyway to get out because,
you know, sometimes ... there were times when I come in and then I didn't have my
card and then you get stuck in here, so you got to call somebody. So, you know,
maybe it's not a bad thing to have to have your card to get in as well because you're
going to need it to get out, true.
MR. MIDDLETON: So we'll have to work that with the alarm ...
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COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah, but we could actually...you couldn't get stuck in here, you
can go out through the main doors.
MR. MIDDLETON: Correct, unless there was a ... normally, unless there was an emergency
there and the fire or the smoke was coming from that side or. ..
CHAIR KING: Yeah, but you still need your card key to get into your office, right, 'cause you
have to get back down ...
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: No, no, no, but you're not going to be stuck in this room.
CHAIR KING: No, no, but you would be stuck outside your office.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR KING: So is your preference to not have it. .. to not have a card key?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Honestly, my preference is, you know, the way things are now
that's fine with me because it's not like we had an incident, and ...
CHAIR KING: No, the incident was a complaint. So we had somebody else in the building
that complained to HIOSH and then HIOSH is making us do this, so that's why we're
here.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Oh.
MR. MIDDLETON: It comes up from time to time when we do like the active shooter drills,
things; people are trying to escape but the active shooter's coming from that area and
there's no way to get out through these back doors unless you have that card key to
access. Now we were working on a solution to that, but this precludes that.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay. So but you said like in an emergency you can bypass using
the card and just push the door open?
MR. MIDDLETON: You don't need a card to bypass. In an emergency, any single person
from the public would be able to come up to these doors and push the panic hardware
and it would just open up.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: How would that happen? It's like somebody's working 24 hours a
day watching that door?
MR. MIDDLETON: No, no. It's automatically set up so that all they do is push that push bar
and it opens up.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE:
open?

Okay.

So in a non-emergency, if you push that push bar, it11
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MR. MIDDLETON: It will open. It will always open. The thing that makes it a little more
complicated is if we put an alarm on it, which would be more just for you all to be
aware that somebody has just come through without it. We don't have to alarm it, we
could just leave it accessible, but then you wouldn't even need your card key to get out
right. You would just be able to walk in and out of that door.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah, which makes it kind of silly to have to use a key card to get
out because all you have to do is push the door, right?
MR. MIDDLETON: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay.
MR. MIDDLETON: Unless we want an alarm because the key card will be the key that shuts
off the alarm.
CHAIR KING: And is the alarm thing optional as far as HIOSH is concemed?
MR. MIDDLETON: The alarm is completely optional.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR KING: So the alarm thing is something that, you know, the Council can decide if you
want it or not, but that would allow you, if someone did sneak into the Chambers, that
you would know if they push the out and they were in the hallway there without a
card key.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay.
CHAIR KING: You would know that.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: So we won't need a card key to get out.
CHAIR KING: No. You'll just-COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay.
CHAIR KING: --trigger an alarm.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay. I mean thank God for govemment, right?
MR. MIDDLETON: Yes.
CHAIR KING: Well I tried to, you know, I had the same attitude as you but then when we
were told we had no choice because of HIOSH, then, you know, you got no choice, so.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: .. . (Inaudible) ...
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CHAIR KING: Yeah, let me ... Mr. Molina had a question and let me go, just kind of go down
and then Mr. Sinenci and then we'll come back to ... Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Middleton. Just
I guess more ... what we're discussing here today because I guess our hands are tied,
so to speak, but at any time, Mr. Middleton, if you feel. .. because this information I
see it as somewhat privileged, it's more for the employees here and just depending on
what's discussed here we certainly don't want some incorrigible out there that could
get, you know, some type of information that could be used for the wrong purposes
and potentially endanger us. So if I guess, Madam Chair, if at any time you feel we
may need to discuss this in a more confidential setting like executive session, please,
you know, let us know, depending on the type of questions we ask too, as well. So
that's all what I wanted to say, Madam Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. So anyway, anything that we've talked about so far that needs to be
executive session, Mr. Middleton?
MR. MIDDLETON: I'm pretty comfortable with it.
CHAIR KING: Mr. Sinenci?
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Thank you, Chair. I just had a comment. I support the
alarm, just as long as it's not like a fire alarm or anything or some type of alarm that
would just inform us that someone came in through ...without a card, the key card.
MR. MIDDLETON: We11 make sure it's noticeable different, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Yeah, thank you. And then, you know, I had a, you know, we
came in early on Monday for my meeting and I guess the Chambers was pitch black.
So there's no like any I guess some-MR. MIDDLETON: Motion ...
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: --or like a night light or anything. I guess you need the keys
to go in and turn on the lights in here so ...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: It's in the back.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Oh, it's in the back?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Oh, okay. Thank you. I didn't know.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Site visit, site visit.
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COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: I thought it was all locked up.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, maybe we need another tour of the grounds or something.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Yeah, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KING: 'Cause, you know, I had the same issue when the first time I came in here, I
didn't know where the lights were. So weird, groping around with our iPads.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Well, yeah, I think just having like almost like a night light or
something like the planes or-MR. MIDDLETON: Like the, yeah ...
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: --you can see yourself. 'Cause there are a lot of steps in here
and if we did come in and it can cause some safety issues. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Thank you.
earlier? I'm sorry.

Mr. Hokama ... well, Ms. Sugimura, did you have a comment

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: 'Cause I'm just curious ...
CHAIR KING: I was thinking you had already made a comment, but that was on something
else, so go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So when are you going to begin?
MR. MIDDLETON: So once we get approval from you, we've got the quotes and we'll make
the order for the hardware. It's a total of a three-day project. We're going to try to
coordinate it all during the same time on an off time. We've got a current deadline
from OSHA of November 4th, but since they came and visited and intend to give us a
notice of a violation at that time, it can change a little bit. We may be able to extend
it. But as soon as possible. And with the least amount of disruption to the people in
the offices.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
something soon?

And are you going to do like demonstration, will you do

MR. MIDDLETON: We're going to update our evacuation, emergency evacuation planning
and we'll walk everybody through it. So great suggestion, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah. And I just want to take this opportunity to also
mention that from my staff, I'm concerned that my staff is assigned ... Miki's been
assigned to do emergency for this floor for I think a lifetime, and I would like to ask
other Members to or take on the responsibility as .. .I mean I'm sure the reason why
she keeps on getting asked is 'cause she's done a good job and taken on the
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responsibility, but as her employer, I just want to say, let's share the experience as I'm
concerned about her safety, actually. So ...
MR. MIDDLETON: Good. Yeah, there's a few positions, right, floor warden is kind of
responsible for the main thing and then people will help ensure that people don't come
back in and there's a number of trainings and equipment that we prepare. So we're
happy to support anybody who wants to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Yeah, thank you.
And then one last things that's
connected to this is, the second floor security to go in and out of the building, I think
that all ties in to this discussion and I would, you know, like to see that come up
agam.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, that's not part of the HIOSH, but that is something that has to be
probably have to go to vote. So all the things on the discussion today are not items for
vote and we're not allowed to talk about those in Chair's meetings. But I do want to
ask you that you said Miki was assigned. Who's assigning her?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Well, Miki has been assigned to that position. I don't know
how that works, but.
CHAIR KING: Do you know by whom? Oh. Mr. Clerk?
MR. NISHITA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Just to kind of generally respond to that. We do
ask for volunteers, and we do start with the people who have previously been assigned
to it, and Miki has graciously accepted that for many years now. But we would
support Councilmember Sugimura's request about rotating individuals, not just for
the safety aspect of certain people but also getting more people aware of what's going
on and what's needed and, you know, the more people that are trained the better.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR KING: So we can check with other Council offices and see if someone else is willing to
do that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR KING:
about.

Thank you for doing it all these years, Miki.

I had no idea what that was

COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Get some young people.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Get some young people ... .(chuckle) ...
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CHAIR KING: Mr. Hokama, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just want to ... and I don't have a problem, yeah, that every
single person who comes in and out of this has to have one badge and use the
software to verify entry and exit out the facility. The Feds do it every day, seven days a
week. Nobody enters anything without a badge, even a temporary visitor. So you
want us to follow and be, you know, occupational safety, I'm for it. But let's do it
correct.
MR. MIDDLETON: Thank you. And that's a little different, right. That's the security access
portion so-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. MIDDLETON: --but good input, very good input.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We're going to cover the whole program now, just not... yeah,
so if it's an inconvenience, too bad. It's about the safety component.
MR. MIDDLETON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. So I don't have a problem with everybody being
scrutinized, scanned for verification.
CHAIR KING: Councilmember Lee, you have a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: I mean that would be nice to do, but I don't think it's all that, you
know, practical. We do have other meetings outside of the building where we
wouldn't ... that wouldn't even be possible at the Wailuku Community Center and all
the different community centers we go to for public meetings. Yeah, I think when we
have 100 people in this Chamber it's difficult to give each one a temporary... and then
that doesn't preclude them from running down the street and go making a duplicate of
some kind. So I'm not in favor of that. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you. Any other comments. So I guess the main, as far as this
issue that we're dealing with today, the main issue is-maybe we can just show by
show of hands-if there are any objections to having these doors so that you have to
have a badge to come in.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We don't have choice, eh, Chair?
CHAIR KING: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We don't have a choice, eh?
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CHAIR KING: No, that part we have a choice on. Whether we need to have a badge to come
in ... we could leave it like this so that anybody could come in, but you need the badge
to get out if you don't want the alarm to trigger.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Badge.
CHAIR KING: So if. .. are there .. .is there are any objections to putting that requirement to
come in to have the badge? So if not, we can go ahead with that.
MR. MIDDLETON: I will say that it's a smart system. And so if we don't like exactly the way
it's set up and we need to make some tweaks, we can. So we're going to set it up as
intelligently as we can. And if we learn differently, then well change it.
CHAIR KING: So, you know, if you have ... so what that means is if you have someone
coming in to your office, you buzz them in, they come down the hall to your office, they
won't be able to get into the Chambers this way without a badge. They would have to
go back out and come in that way. But in an emergency, ifthere's emergency since we
have an evacuation in the back side and on that stairwell, that in an emergency,
everybody would be able to just push the doors to get out and go around the back side
if there's a fire that blocks this access. So that was really the only choice we had in
the HIOSH complaint.
MR. MIDDLETON: Yeah, the other would be a very complex balanced door that would swing
both ways and we would completely.. .it's just not practical. So this is our best
option.
CHAIR KING: Okay. And I think, Mr. Clerk, we're looking at around 14, 15,000 for all these
changes, altogether?
MR. NISHITA: Yes, ma'am. I believe it was around that amount.
amount in front of me, but I think it was around that amount.

I don't have the exact

MR. MIDDLETON: That is correct.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Councilmember Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: I don't have any objections to, you know, swiping to come in, but
just, who's the Einstein that caused all these problems with ... one complaint ...
CHAIR KING: You know, now you're asking me to be like President Trump and look for the
whistle blower.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah.
ALL: .. .(chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KING: I'm not going to ...
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COUNCILMEMBER LEE: No, no, one complaint ...
CHAIR KING: .. .I'm not doing an investigation into the whistleblower. . . .(chuckle) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: You know, I'm hoping this person comes here on a regular basis, I
mean, you know, as opposed to somebody who complained and, you know, never show
up in this Chamber again.
MR. MIDDLETON: As part of the process, the way HIOSH complaints work, they do have to
identify themselves. HIOSH will not take ... they11 keep them anonymous, but that
person needs to be an employee and needs to have knowledge and it needs to be
specific and credible and so they do give it a little bit of weight.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay. Thank you. And, Mr. Molina, please don't make any more
complaints.
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR KING: Okay. Any more questions about that? We have to move forward quickly on
that and hopefully we11 get that resolved with HIOSH.

CULTURAL IMPLEMENTS IN CHAMBER
(COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI)

CHAIR KING: Okay. Cultural Implements ... we11 move on to the next item which is
Mr. Sinenci, Cultural Implements in Chambers. And you had some information from
your community?
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Thank you for putting this on the
agenda today. Yes. As you know, our office has been receiving some correspondence
from some of the cultural practitioners that are in the community, and specific to our
mea makamae or the cultural artifacts that sit in the Chambers, specifically the pahu
drums. And so we did want to reach out to some authority in the culture. So we did
reach out to Mr. Kapono'ai Molitau, and he is a kumu hula and he's also the
Kahuna Nui for the Na Papa Kanaka o Pu'ukohola on the Big Island. So he did share
some of his mana·o, and I felt, I asked that if I could share some of his mana·o with
you today. So he did say that he was against, as a kumu hula, he was against the
pahus being in the Chambers only because, as a practitioner, they have specific
protocols when they deal with the pahus. And one of them, he mentioned, was
putting up a pale or a cap on top of the pahu when it's not in use. And he explained
that, you know, sometimes as this vestment that they use, they want to control some
of maybe some of the stuff or the energies maybe, so to speak, that goes into the pahu.
So that was one of the ... what they do as kumu hula. And so he recommended that,
you know, if it was the will of the Chair and the Council, you know, to be more
appropriate too, we could repurpose it and maybe look at maybe schools that could
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use the pahus in a more appropriate way, specifically schools maybe from Wailuku or
Maui that because the drums had come from Maui. And so he mentioned maybe
some of the schools. Some schools already have a pahu, but maybe those that would,
you know, find a need to use that. So that was his recommendation. I did ask him if
what types of Hawaiian vestments would be more appropriate for our setting. And so
he said, right, it's all about utilization and purpose. So if we did have something that
we could use during our meetings. He did say some ... mention the pu ·ohe, and the
pu 'ohe is like a bamboo, almost like a conch shell or something-COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: The flute.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: --that would mark the opening.. .if we wanted to do an
opening or closing of certain meetings or cultural events that we have in the
Chambers. Uncle Don mentioned that sometimes the ... even though the kahili is also
a symbol of rank or royalty, it also could represent, you know, more political might or
even like the ihe could also represent political might and rank. But again it would,
that would come with some kind of ceremonial thing. So that was my report, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you. And I know you had mentioned possibly.. .I'm not sure if
you were talking about like giving them away to schools or loaning them out to
schools. You're talking about these two drums here?
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: I think he ... yes. And I think he ...just for the, I guess, the
protocols of using them. I personally have heard in the past when drums were made,
they were given a name and the purpose to almost, not have a voice so to speak, but
you know the purpose is to use them and to drum them, you know, actually use them.
So he was just looking for people who would use it and that was his recommendation,
to repurpose them.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you for that. Vice-Chair Rawlins-Fernandez, then followed by
Pro Tern Tasha Kama.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahalo, Chair. I wanted to dovetail off of what
Member Sinenci is saying. So basically, what is the purpose of our pahu? And as I've
seen it in the last few years, the purpose of our pahu is decoration, and that is ... so if
we look at the pahu as a symbol of our culture, is our culture just for decoration?
And by removing the pahu, it doesn't remove our perception and perspective of our
culture as mere decoration. And so it's kind of a deeper discussion of what is our
culture in this Chamber. Does it have meaning? Is it something that helps to guide
us? Pahu and other cultural instruments have mana to them, and they're supposed
to have mana. And if it's basically .. .it's offensive to our people if it ... all it is, it
serves as the purpose of decoration. So I don't know like the history behind these
pahu, so I would love to get more information about where it came from, you know,
who gifted it to the Chamber. What was the intention behind the gifting of it to the
Council? What is its function, if it's used for ceremony in the Chamber, which I
haven't seen, but perhaps when it was initially gifted it was? How is it treated? So my
perception is decoration, but I don't know if others feel differently. And I guess if
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there's an opportunity to use it more, give it its purpose, which is to be used as
Member Sinenci spoke to. The, I guess, the last thing I want to share which was
shared with me - the mana·o behind it. Okay. So I guess the kauna is important.
And if it is just decoration, the action to take is building respect and value for
Hawaiians and what we bring to the table with issues and challenges that we currently
face. Our culture is absolutely relevant and even central to finding the solutions that
lead us to a more prosperous future. So just that to take into consideration. Mahalo,
Chair.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Mahalo. Member Kama, Pro Tern Kama?
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Thank you, Chair. I would like to know the history of this gift. If
it was gifted to the Council or the County. Again, I want to know what was their
intent. And I know that the pahu is a sacred instrument. Usually you don't find them
in public places, you find them in sacred spaces, usually a heiau. So whatever the
purpose or the intent or this symbolism of what it might represent, maybe we don't
know those things, maybe we should know them so that it gives us a clear
understanding and perspective of why they are here. I think having the discussion
today about, yeah, so why is it here? And maybe there's a story that hasn't been told
in past and maybe becomes our kuleana to find out what is that story and to keep
that story relevant no matter who sits in these Chambers. But I'd like to know that
such just-CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: --symbol as Keani has said.
CHAIR KING: Mr. Clerk, are you ... do ... can you give us the background of those? I think
these particular ones were purchased recently. 'Cause I remember seeing an invoice
for them from the previous term. But maybe Josiah can give us some background on
the original. 'Cause my understanding was that these replaced the original ones, but I
don't know the story behind the original placement of drums in the Chambers.
MR. NISHITA: Thank you, Madam Chair. I honestly don't have that much information for
you on them. As far as I'm aware our Office wasn't really involved with the placement
of them. And I believe in terms of the purchases, what you're describing, I don't
believe that came from our Office. I think that was made through the Office of Council
Services-CHAIR KING: Oh, okay.
MR. NISHITA: --but I may be mistaken on that.
CHAIR KING: Oh, okay. I thought that the Clerk was kind of responsible. Traci, do you
know anything about the history of it?
Okay.
Michelle, do you have some
information? You want to come down and share? This is kind of just scratching the
surface, so we11 try to get a deeper dive on it. Member Kama?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: While she's coming, I just think that, you know, before we decide
what we're going to do and not do with stuff in this Chamber, we should at least know
what it is and why it's here and whatever purpose it might be intended for so that we
don't end up taking out things that we probably don't have business doing things.
But I like the idea of having the discussion and to getting to the root of things that are
here in this Chambers.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So thank you.
CHAIR KING: Thank you.
MS. DEL ROSARIO: There is an invoice where the drums were paid for at the end of the last
term. Chairman White had paid for them personally and the invoice that was
submitted at the end of his term was the County of Maui reimbursing him. It's a little
over $3,000. There's a written invoice and a check and documentation. I think it
came out of the Chair's discretionary fund. And my understanding was that he had
ordered them from Molokai, and they were made on Molokai. But there is written
documentation in the Chair's discretionary fund that we can resurrect, pull out, and
everyone can review.
CHAIR KING: Okay. We ...
MS. DEL ROSARIO:
purchased.

So my understanding is they were not a gift, they were m fact

CHAIR KING: Right. But we should delve into and maybe we can find out if they were made
on Molokai, if there's a history behind where they were made and why they were made
and put in the Chambers. But I think there's a deeper dive that needs to be done on
these.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Agreed.
CHAIR KING: Councilmember Sugimura, followed by Councilmember Lee.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah, thank you. The documents that were passed out
regarding this item, it looks like Danny Mateo was probably the Clerk at the time. And
that White placed the two pahu, new coconut drums, in the Chamber to symbolize a
calling together of Members of the community. So that's what the newspaper article
says. And I really like doing the deeper dive and I know that, for myself, at the last
GET meeting-thank you, Mr. Molina, for getting it discussed-about changes to the
Council Chambers, that it should be a decision that all of us make. So, I appreciate
this. I still would like to hear more as this deeper dive about the tapestry that was
removed. 'Cause I think that has a huge history that, you know, actions were taken
for decisions made outside of us. So, I would like that placed on the next Council
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agenda and/ or Chair's meeting. But as far as this goes, I respect all of what's being
said and for us to ...
CHAIR KING: Yeah, and we could a deeper dive on the other ... the other is we're still trying
to explore cleaning on that tapestry and it's looking like it's going to be in the
thousands on that as well. Member Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah, Madam Chair, I'm wondering, since you, Member Hokama,
Member Sugimura were here last term, what was Mr. White's explanation of
purchasing these drums? Did it just show up one day?
CHAIR KING: Yeah, personally, I don't know, I never was in any meeting where there was
any explanation of the drums. So they may have been ...
COUNCILMEMBER LEE:
there?

No, but it was during your term that these drums were placed

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I think it was before.
CHAIR KING: My, you know, my understanding was that there were drums here and then
whoever put them here .. .I mean and I could be wrong, but my understanding was
that when I looked at the invoice that there were drums here and then Mr. White
replaced them during his term with ... and then, you know, personally, and then got
reimbursed for them. And so I don't know what the original intent of those drums. I
never noticed that they actually got replaced because we never use them. So I never
know, I never knew what the original intent was. It was never discussed in Chambers.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Can I ask Mr. Hokama since he goes back further?
CHAIR KING: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: You remember which ... who, who had placed the drums there in
the first place? Not only these, but the other ones.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I cannot really recall the first pair, when it was. I do know
that Mr. White's tenure, he did again, as part of his work philosophy at Kaanapali
Beach and his cultural practice programs, had tried to bring a little bit more culture
into the Chambers. I know he proposed the ulu maika koa to be like our gavel as
another symbol of conducting our ceremonies here or our meetings here. He asked
me once what I thought. I said, as long as it's within the accepted realm of the
practice I had no issues with it because, well, this is Hawaii. I have no problem with
us incorporating the cultural practices when it makes good sense for us to conduct
our business. So I would say that was my understanding of how we approached it,
Ms. Lee. You know, you look around, that's why we have koa walls, koa desk, it's
about incorporating our natural assets into our Chambers. So that's how I view
Mr. White's efforts.
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CHAIR KING: Ms. Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: During my time, originally, there was nothing ornamental in here.
I mean we had chairs that I think they saved from World War II. I mean you could
barely move them around, they were so heavy. And so this is kind of a new, you
know, a new phenomenon in a sense that ours was pretty bare bones. So all these
new things, you know, are nice but, you know, I can take them either way. Thank
you.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, when I. .. at the beginning of this year, I heard from majority of the
Councilmembers that the poi pounder for the gavel was probably not appropriate. So I
think, you know, doing that deeper dive on what is appropriate-and Mr. Sinenci
brought up that maybe the drums weren't appropriate for the Chambers either--so
having that discussion I think with cultural practitioners is important. But I did
personally go to one of the other Members who's Hawaiian who's outgoing and say, I
asked him about the poi pounder, and he said, yeah, that's .. .it's not appropriate,
that's why I brought my own gavel, and that's what he told me. And I said, well how
come you never told the rest of us that, 'cause I had no idea that it was not
appropriate and so I was using the poi pounder as well. But Mr. Sinenci concurred
that the implements that are in here should not be .. .implements are used for other
things.
So having this discussion, thinking, and trying to figure out what is
appropriate because we don't want to be offensive to our host culture. And I was kind
of appalled that that was offensive, and I never knew it, you know, no one ever told me
that till almost till actually the beginning of this term and ... well, or after the election I
guess I heard it from some of the incoming Councilmembers. So if we can kind of
maybe get more of a .. .if we can get a written report or something from you,
Mr. Sinenci, to distribute to all the Councilmembers with .. .if you want to give a
recommendation on what should or could happen and, you know, individual
Councilmembers can comment on it. It's not something that right now is urgent, you
know, issue that has to get done. I mean it's not like the HIOSH where we have a
deadline, but I do think it's something that we should all consider and especially if it
came from Molokai, what kind of, what implication is that as far as their meaning and
use going forward. Maybe our Vice-Chair could give us some ... and our Pro Tern,
Tasha Kama, who certainly has that background.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: I was just wondering if maybe Councilmember Sinenci, when he
does his report to us, if we'd put in a call to Mr. White and ask him what was his
intent when he ...what was he thinking.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Sure. We can reach out to him.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. And there may be, it may be that there were other, you know, my
impression was there were other, there were drums here already when he got here,
and so he replaced them because whoever put them here took them back. That's not
true? Okay. Nobody really knows so, so we11 delve into it as best we can. Do you
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think, Mr. Sinenci, I know that when you brought this up, do you think that we're
okay to leave everything as is until we figure this out, is that like an urgent issue?
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: I can check again-CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: --with Mr. Molitau, and then we can, I can give you a report
back, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Chair?
CHAIR KING: Oh, Councilmember Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUG!MURA:
So I have a newspaper article--where is this
from?--Mauicounty.us, printed collateral [sic] dated September. .. oh, I'm sorry, the
article is 2015, January 2, 2015. 111 give this to .. .I11 give this to Traci or whoever
or...
CHAIR KING: About when was the date on that?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Is January-Rayna, sorry-is January 2, 2015.
CHAIR KING: 20 15? Okay. And that was when the drums first got purchased?
COUNCILMEMBER SUG!MURA: That's about when Council organized and talking about the
drums that you were talking about.
CHAIR KING: Okay. So maybe that was under a previous Chair's purview.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Previous Clerk, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Chair?
CHAIR KING: No, I think the Clerk said that they didn't have anything to do with that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUG!MURA: Right. So it's under the previous Clerk is what I'm saying,
but that...
CHAIR KING: But what our Clerk said was it didn't go through the Clerk's Office, it went
through OCS.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Right. The date is before Josiah.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So another thing was the portrait of King Kamehameha. So I
was wondering if maybe Councilmember Sinenci would also take that into
consideration as to ... so where is it, what should we do with it, and maybe you
could ... so is it possible for him to include the statue [sic], Chair, as part of his
cultural implements in the Chamber? I don't know.
CHAIR KING: The State statute or. ..
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: No, the portrait that we did at HSAC of King Kamehameha.
CHAIR KING: Oh, of King Kamehameha?
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Yeah. So is that...
CHAIR KING: Yeah, that's actually done. I think it's in the Clerk's Office right now. We put
that plaque on that you designed for it-COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR KING: --but it kind of started sliding down, so they're trying to wait to fix. But that
one right now is on an easel. So if you could, if you could maybe ask about where that
might be-COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: --put permanently, if that's appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: If that could be part of his scope.
CHAIR KING: Okay. That's a great idea.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KING: So if we can ask who your resource is, what would be. . . We have a, I don't
want to say, what is it, life-size portrait. It's a pretty fair-sized portrait of King
Kamehameha that we used at HSAC and we have a plaque that's going to be attached
to it that Pro Tern Kama designed. And maybe we could fmd out where that would be
appropriate to-COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Okay. I can reach out.
CHAIR KING: --if that's appropriate inside the Chambers or in the lobby or where that
should go.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Okay. I can do that.
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CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you for bringing that up, because that's been kind of on my
mind about where to put that.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Chair?
CHAIR KING: Vice-Chair Rawlins-Fernandez?
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahalo. I think perhaps we're missing the point with
the pahu. What is this Council's intention with the pahu there? Is it ornamental,
exclusively? Or, you know, does it have a deeper meaning to all of us, because
whether the pahu are there or not, it's merely a manifestation of what we see as the
Hawaiian culture. And if it's purely ornamental and just for decoration, then
regardless of whether the pahu are there or not, that is how we see the Hawaiian
culture. And so I think perhaps we can like, you know, search within ourselves to see
what is the purpose of the pahu being there. And if the intention is good, then
perhaps we can give it that mana. It doesn't have to be removed. We just have to
know why it's there and what the intention behind it is. And so that would I guess in
Member Sinenci's report, and perhaps, you know, I don't know the Members can share
with Member Sinenci what they feel the pahu is there for. And perhaps we can see
how we can, you know, make the intention better and we can have it here and serve a
better purpose than diminishing the Hawaiian culture in that way.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Can you maybe work with Member Sinenci-VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Sure, yeah.
CHAIR KING: --and then maybe you can make recommendations to the Council on what the
next steps are. Your staff member has some thoughts on this. Would you like to hear
from your staff member?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This is only Members.
CHAIR KING: Mr. Atay? Thank you for being here and thank you for sharing your mana·o.
MR. ATAY: Good morning. Is this thing on?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Yeah.
MR. ATAY: Anyway. The pahu, from what we as Hawaiian practitioners are known about
that, I have one and I'm presuming that these were made in Molokai, probably was
made by the son-in-law of Bill Kapuni who is a master pahu maker on Molokai. And
the pahu in our culture or as practitioners use for hula but also for prayers, oli, yeah,
to chant. It was not used for decoration. It's not used for. .. to make beautification.
In fact, you not even supposed to use it like a table, like Shane said, practitioners
would put a cover over it, pale. It is .. .I have one that was made by Bill Kapuni and it
was made for my son. And most pahus, if it was made personally for someone, you
have implements inside the pahu that represent the spirit of that individual. Like in
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the pahu that I have for my son that Bill made, he has his hair, he has his piko, he
has fingernails, the kukui nut, the sand. Because the pahu also has a name, just like
canoes, and it takes on another physical manifestation. It's not just a drum, it
becomes an entity, a person. So for us, as practitioners, it's not just a drum, yeah, it's
more than the drum. And why I mention about the ihe and the kahili, if you look at
your State crest, the kahili represents the symbol of rank, of power, of authority. The
ihe shows your might to have that authority, and they are held and the crest by the
sacred twins- Kamanawa, Kame"eiamoku. So they all have symbolic reasons. These
are not implements for show, and that's where sometimes us, as practitioners, feel
insulted. The ku"i "ai that was used as a gavel, that is to make food, that is not to
make authority in the ... for political reasons. So these are symbolic things that's very
important for practitioners or Hawaiian people. So you kind of insult us by using
these things to say, oh, we're being Hawaiian. So that's all I got to say. So be
sensitive to the culture and seek out the knowledge, not just you making use for
beautification or for the photo op, because we Hawaiians are tired of the photo op.
Look at our, the fishpond in Kihei. When I was part... participated in rebuilding that
fishpond, it was used for a photo op. It wasn't meant to be a complete loko i"a, and all
we seen was tourist use it as a photo op, and that was in the care of the Whale
Foundation. So for us, it's very insulting, especially when you put mana to help build
and restore something and then not to be used in the right purpose, but to use as a
photo op for political reasons ... because I had Mayor Arakawa came over there, pick
up one pohaku, oh, picture on front page Maui News. Same thing with Congressman
Ed Case, pick up one rock, photo op, but never completed the project to make that a
true loko i"a. So it's very insulting for us that are practitioners that want to restore
something culturally and then politicians use it for photo ops. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Thank you, Mr. Atay, that was really helpful, that expression. So ... that kind
of possibly makes it a little more urgent. Maybe we can get that recommendation and
then ... and again, Councilmembers, if you have any of your own personal thoughts on
it, feel free to reach out as well to Mr. Sinenci or myself. Any other comments or
questions on this item?
COUNCILMEMBER S!NENCI: Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Thank you for ...
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: We11 do the report.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Chair, thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you very much.
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ENFORCEMENT OF VIOLATIONS OF COUNCIL RULES

CHAIR KING: Okay. So moving on. Enforcement of Violations of Council Rules. And this is
one that came up .. .it's actually broader than, you know, we had some issues with
Code of Conduct in the Chambers recently and we've had some testimony from some
people that felt that they were mistreated by Councilmembers, but we also have the
broader issue of decorum in the Chambers. And so I've been speaking with our OCS
Director Traci Fujita about how to maintain decorum, and it's really on .. .I mean the
Code of Conduct was put in here for us to be able to police ourselves and I'm not really
sure what that means. It's like what kind of enforcement do we have other than the
Chair. So I think a lot of this falls on the Chair and then that kind of opens up the
other part of the discussion as far as decorum in the Chambers. We had discussion
with the Police Chief a couple days ago because our Office of Council Services
employees are feeling like it's on them often to handle disruptive people in the
Chambers, and they're not security guards and they're not police; and so they don't
feel equipped to handle issues when somebody won't stop at the three minutes and
gets loud or issues of even altercations out in the Chambers or in the lobby. And so
the option ... one of the questions was, what role do the police have? And the police
cannot just come every meeting and be here, they don't have that kind of resource.
They are willing to come at the call of the Chair if you see, if you are chairing a
Committee meeting or if I'm chairing a Council meeting and we see ... and I don't know
what the threshold is, each Chair may have a different threshold. Because if there's
five members in your ... that are testifying, it's generally not an issue, but if you see 25
or 30 and you know there's opposing sides and there's kind of passions on both sides,
you may want to have security here, and that's the call of the Chair to call in that
security. We can't put it on OCS to ... so one of their requests was to possibly have an
additional person who's a security person, and I'm not sure if we're ready for that. I
mean we could ... they were looking at that for next Budget, but I just wanted to .. .I
mean like I don't want to vote on that because that's a Budget issue, but I just wanted
to bring it up that my feeling was that it's up to each Chair to police our own meetings
and to gavel a recess if it gets out of hand. I mean we've all pretty much had that
happen to us at one point or another now. And some committees are more prone to it
than others. I don't think I've ever seen anything break out in the Multimodal
Transportation Committee, but I have seen things break out in GET and the full
Council. So, you know, I just kind of wanted to put it out there that I don't know what
the answer is to policing violations and especially when there are violations in the
Chambers. There's really nothing we can, you know, it's sort of an honor system. It's
a Code of Conduct for all of us. And I just wanted all of us to be aware that, you
know, we're here to listen to testimony. If it gets out of hand, it's up to the Chair to
police it, but it's also up to us as individual Councilmembers to treat everybody with
respect and listen to what they have to say. And one of the things that came up in the
last GET meeting about testimony was creating these dialogues, which, you know, the
only way of policing the, when we get into dialogues with testifiers that I've seen
happen, is another Councilmember saying, wait, you know, this is point of order, we're
getting into a dialogue or the Chair stopping it. There's really nothing in the Council
Rules that gives us guidance. So to that end, David Raatz, our Supervising Attorney,
is putting together ... he found somebody on Oahu that's an expert on decorum. So
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he's going to bring that person in and we're going to have a workshop outside of the
Council. So you're welcome to come or not. It's on November 24<h--Traci?-okay, in
the Chambers. And it's just sort of somebody who can give us some additional tools
as Chairs of the various Committees or the Council on how to handle decorum issues
in the Chambers. And, you know, hopefully everybody can, you know, it11 be one of
those publicly noticed meetings, I believe. Traci?
MS. FUJITA: No, it's not.
CHAIR KING: It won't be? So but we're not in violation of any Sunshine Law if we all show
up?
MS. FUJITA: Training.
CHAIR KING: Okay. So it's considered training so we're not in violation if we get more than
a quorum. So that's kind of what that's about. And I don't know what the answer is
'cause this comes up as far as Council Rules, I don't know what the answer is as far
as enforcing Council Rules. I think we just all have to keep having conversations
about what's happening and what's not happening. Member Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Madam Chair, maybe at that training you could also include
exactly what to do when chaos breaks out and, you know, everything's out of control,
you know, there needs to be a procedure where somebody on staff automatically calls
the police and automatically calls the ninth floor. I think it's ... and automatically
notifies the seventh floor. Once you call the ninth floor, you're notifying the Mayor,
and it's up to the Mayor's Office to notify the rest of the departments. We're
responsible for Clerk's Office, OCS, and the eighth floor. And I think, you know, that
is an automatic reaction that must take place. And secondly, of course, the first thing
you do is call a recess, but nevertheless, these other precautions must take place.
CHAIR KING: Okay. And then part of what we need to figure out is what is that threshold
that triggers that call, you know, how bad does it have to get. Because some
Councilmembers, you know, have had really egregious, you know, confrontations
between people and some Council Chairs have never had it or, you know, have had
kind of lower level, maybe just going over your time I don't think is probably a reason
to call the ninth floor but if it gets, you know, ifthere's like some level of violence. So
that's kind of what this workshop is about to kind of get us thinking in terms of when
is that trigger point where we call either the police or we make the report to the ninth
floor. I know it's not easy.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: It's not easy. But, you know, I would think that, you know, those
of us who been working here for a while now, you know, should know exactly when,
you know, to make that phone call or hit that gavel. Or when people start yelling and
screaming in the audience, obviously that's maybe past the time. So it's better to be
safe, yeah, and honestly it only happens sometimes. It happens with you and the
Council meetings, it happens with GET and those meetings. So all the contentious
ones. Most of us don't have that issue.
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CHAIR KING: Yeah, I think it's happened with Member Kama as well. So and I know that
it's happened with Member Sugimura in the past as well for. .. not the Committee
she's chairing now, but so, yeah, I mean that's what I. .. that was kind of my point to
the police was that we don't need you here every day because some committees just
never have that issue. I don't think I've ever seen it on the Healthy Families
Committee where we've had that contentiousness. So it is kind of a judgement call
and that's why we kind of need some training on that. So, Member Molina, did
you ... and then Member Kama.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. I know at this point you want
the discussion centered on like any disruptions in the Council Chambers from the
audience or with testifiers, but my angle here at this point for the discussion is, you
know, we discovered at the most recent GET meeting, we have nothing memorialized
for us as Councilmembers if we break our own rules. So that's where I'm going to
come across today. And, Chair, thank you for ... with your opening remarks for, you
know, asking for forgiveness or apologies or anything you may have said that have
offended. I know I've done so myself to each and every one of you. And I know my
colleague from Wailuku will certainly nod her head in agreement for sure, but yeah.
CHAIR KING: You've had some heavy issues, Mr. Molina. So, yeah ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But, yeah, we have to find consequences to police ourselves. I
mean what's the purpose of having rules if there are no consequences. If you '11 allow
me, Madam Chair, I have ... my staff did some research from other counties to look
at .. .I don't want to use the word "punishments," but maybe ways to correct any
behavior that could be inappropriate on the part of a Councilmember. And we got this
information from various counties:
Draper County in Utah; Bridgewater,
Massachusetts; East Hampton, New York; Forney Council in Texas; Gresham, Oregon;
and Grayling, Michigan. We came up with about nine of these, I guess, disciplinary
actions these Councils have put in their rules. And obviously, I think today we cannot
take any formal action if it's ... this is more informational, something for us to think
about and if we-CHAIR KING: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --want to include this--oh sorry, Chair, meaning to get one to
you-CHAIR KING: That's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If you'd like, I could just quickly read it into the record what
these proposed enforcement actions are from other councils. The first one is to expel
the Member from further deliberations.
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CHAIR KING: You know, Mr. Molina, just because I don't want to get in the Sunshine Law
issue, and I've been told that there are things that we're going to be voting... we might
be voting on, 'cause this might be a policy change, right, of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh yeah. This is just more for discussion, yeah.
CHAIR KlNG: So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I know the intent is not to make any decisions, but just for us
to read over.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, but I mean we're deliberating on something that may be an issue. So
are we okay with going forward with this discussion?
MS. FUJITA: Yeah, there can be a discussion, but...
CHAIR KING: We're not going to be in trouble if this ends up being a proposal to ...
MS. FUJITA: Yeah, you can start the discussion, but of course there couldn't be any action.
CHAIR KlNG: Okay, great. Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, no, I think it's a good discussion. I just wanted to make sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, I'm glad you made that point, that clarification. So
anyway, one proposal is they--this came from Draper, Utah--expel the member from
further deliberations. This one from Bridgewater, Massachusetts, number two demand a public apology for statements against another personality or towards a
citizen. False statements or offensive claims against another. And punishment is to
prevent individual from deliberations or censure until apology is provided. This third
one came from East Hampton, New York - resolution of censure by the council
towards the members. Number four came from, again, East Hampton - removal of
committee chairmanship or removal from leadership position on the council. I think
much like our State Legislature I think they have that in their rules. Number five from Fomey, Texas, private censure completed in executive session. Number six came
from Gresham, Oregon, seek to determine how to change the behavior of the
individual violating rules, that's interesting. And seven, from Grayling, Michigan
County - member loses seniority or committee assignments. And number eight, from
the same county- have travel restricted. And number nine, conduct investigation and
hear findings at a council meeting, which I think overlap some of the other councils.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So and, you know, you mentioned earlier about your. . .in a
rule infraction that you may have committed and, you know, I recall at our last
Council meeting the timestamping issue ...
CHAIR KING: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
... and my understanding, you did make an apology
afterwards to the Clerk's Office. Can you clarify that?
CHAIR KING: Yeah, because, you know, I was under the understanding that it was the Clerk
that came into my office to get, you know, when I signed it and we handed ... but it
was actually someone from OCS that came into my office and then walked it to the
Clerk's Office.
So we're trying to figure out what happened.
There's like an
eight-minute gap and it's not that far between our office and the Clerk's Office, but so,
you know, I did talk to the Clerk's Office and apologized and I did talk to OCS; and we
just kind of decided, you know, there's no not going ...you know, we all kind of want
to know what happens in those cases. But we didn't want to go forward with having
anybody be blamed or, you know, looking back into it. So, you know, we kind of
wanted to go forward with the understanding of not letting things get to that level
where there's minutes to spare and also if there are then individual Councilmembers
may want to have their own staff if, you know, if something has to get times tamped,
walk it to the Clerk's Office, and then there's not that concern of who did what or why
did that happen. But we just try to prevent it from happening again. We're going to
try to get a Wednesday deadline, internal deadline between my office and the OCS on if
there's any critical items that are outstanding that aren't, you know, haven't been
flagged that need to go on that next Council meeting, that we don't wait till that
morning to work on them. And that's kind of all we can do from our side, but from
each of your sides to know that if you do come up close to that noon hour that, you
know, to rather than having somebody come to your office and take it to the Clerk's
Office, maybe just walk it there yourself. I mean that's, you know, I don't think
there's ... you know, I take full responsibility for .. .I don't know what happened in that
event. I wasn't there after I signed it. So but, you know, I mean it is my responsibility
because it's my office so ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure. Well, thank you for sharing that with us.
apology went not only to the Clerk but to the staff itself and everybody.

And that

CHAIR KING: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And thank you, Chair, for disclosing that publicly so
that's ironically one of the, you know, proposals ...
CHAIR KING: Yeah, I think tensions are high. We have some big issues on our plate right
now, and I apologize because, you know, I have not been sleeping well because a lot of
these .. .lot of stuff here.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right. And I apologize, too, 'cause I know I've kind of drew
your ire on certain times as well, too, as we all have. Well, I'll just speak for myself so,
you know...
CHAIR KING: Yeah, well we, you know, we are going ... we have a really good Council and
that's why, you know, to me it was, you know, I'm taking responsibility and I was
upset that I caused any of that because we are getting along really well and it's, you
know, it's a congenial atmosphere and I feel like, you know, even when we disagree on
issues and we vote differently, we can still come back to that level of respect. And, you
know, if it's a matter of adhering to the letter of the law, I got to adhere to the letter of
the law.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, thank you, Madam Chair. I want to yield the floor
for Members have any comments on these, this information provided.
CHAIR KING: On these items? Okay. Councilmember Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay. What's missing from this list, Mr. Molina, is when a
Councilmember starts to talk story with the testifier just like they're in the kitchen or
something and where the rest of us are just sitting there, you know, like oh my God,
when are you guys going to stop it. So, yeah, I wish the Chair would not allow that to
happen. And this thing about getting clarification goes well beyond. That is so
abused it's not funny, and I wish that were on this list, yeah. We could banish them
to Ukraine or something. But anyway, we need to really be careful of that. Just
because a Councilmember-and this is how it's used-just 'cause a Councilmember
agrees with the testifier and wants that testifier to talk longer, they11 come up with
these questions and then they go on and on and on. You know, again, I have to say, I
have to fight for fairness. Other people are in the audience waiting for their turn and
have to tolerate this kind of, you know, conduct. And, okay, I will give some leniency
to the testifier because, you know, many of them are not professionals, but I think
when a Councilmember acts that way, that becomes, to me, borderline inexcusable
because they should know better. They should know that other people are waiting to
testify, and we need to get through our business. So, you know, I'd really like to
caution my colleagues, please stop doing that. It's really not necessary, you know. We
read the material, too. And to just allow one testifier to go on and on and sometimes
for like 10 and 15 minutes, so that's way beyond, you know, the rules. So please, I
would highly recommend that Councilmembers think about that when you're asking
questions, remember that a lot of other people, you know, waiting for their turn.
Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you, Member Lee. Member Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate the discussion, Chair, with Mr. Molina and
Ms. Lee. I was just going to bring up that in the past, we did have a Rule 25 which
was like conduct relating to public meetings. We did have a Rule 26 regarding code of
ethics, prohibitions, and penalties. So I would say, we may want to consider the old
rules language. It was very simple, discuss issues not personalities; prohibit unruly or
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disrespectful behavior, which is just basic, civilized courtesies; accept responsibility to
attend all the meetings; do their best to communicate clear, concise, audible language;
speak in a manner that does not undermine the integrity of the Council, a fellow
Member, or a meeting participant. And one that, you know, I also will say I'm guilty of
at times is we should be refraining from browsing the Internet as much as possible
while a session is on, especially when we go into executive session, the concern of
privileged information needs to be secured. So I would say, there was good guidelines
in the past that maybe we can consider it again, Chair, if it's worthy for us to amend
our current rules and put it back. But I think there was guidance in the past that
might be helpful and again each Chair has his own style, so I would agree with you,
some a little bit more tolerant. Me, I'm a little bit more tight, how I run meetings and
have no problem pounding gavels and adjourning meetings ahead of time. So there's
procedures a Member can use to maintain decorum and one is to adjourn the meeting
and repost it, you know. Or I would say, you can clear the Chambers, that is a thing
that the Chair can order either the police or through the Clerk's. Or if we do
eventually may have a sergeant-at-arms which would be that position's responsibility
is then clear the Chambers. That's what they do at the State, that's what they do at
Congress if need be for purposes of the body. Rare, but allowed. So I would say, I
would ask all the Members to share with the appropriate .. .if it's you, fme, if it's
Mr. Molina that wants more work, that's fine. I don't have a problem. So thanks for
volunteering, Michael.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, no problem.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KING: And we do have, you know, we do have a policy Rule No. 25, which is the
conduct relating to public meetings. So the discussion was like how do we enforce
those, you know, those policies, and Mr. Molina gave us a good start and then we11
just I guess leave it up to you, Mr. Molina, to propose a policy, you know, from here.
But I don't think we have, unless anybody's got something pressing, we don't need to
spend a lot of time on this, but thank you so much for doing this research. This is
really interesting. What do you do when you have a policy and there's no enforcement
in that policy? So comment, Member Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah, I really have said before and I support us having a
sergeant-of-arms [sic]. I understand how OCS, we look at them thinking that they're
going to solve this kind of problem, but it's really not their kuleana. In my last term
when I called the police, when the police came, they didn't really know what to do
either, 'cause we didn't really have any guidelines for that, but it was nice having them
stand around because it sets some kind of, you know, tone. But I want to say, the
City and County of Honolulu has a sergeant-of-arms [sic] and they take it pretty
seriously. And they have policies in place. It was shared with me when I was trying to
get this looked at. It didn't get anywhere, but I would like to, maybe if I could, you
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know, explore that by looking at what City and County of Honolulu does and they, you
know, they have lot of checks in place already so ...
CHAIR KING: Okay. Maybe you could work with OCS on writing ... for the next budget
session maybe we can look at adding that position, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Member Kama?
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Thank you, Chair. So I was looking at Rule 25.H. and it says,
Prohibit unruly or disrespectful behavior in the Council Chamber and encourage a
safe and respectful environment for all attendees. Sometimes testifiers come down
and they denigrate people in the Administration, and sometimes they act like bullies
coming across. That's disrespectful and immediately should be ...just that something
got to be done 'cause it's not right ...just have to sit here and listen to somebody
denigrate somebody else. That's not what we're here to do, that's not what we're here
to listen, and we're not here to perpetuate that kind of behavior. But if we don't put a
stop to it, they continue on. So, Chairs, it's up to us. I like the idea of having a
sergeant-at-arms. I like the idea of just pounding the gavel and say, recess; or I'm
going to adjourn this meeting if you don't ... or whatever. But you got to do something
and not do nothing. So I'm glad we're having this discussion today, and I really am
looking forward to talking about the sergeant-at-arms at the next ... whenever we have
this meeting again. So thank you.
CHAIR KING: Member Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah, you know, I want to add to that conversation. The
last meeting we had, we had a testifier who came up and he was actually speaking
against the white man, basically, and he was saying, you know, kind of strong
comments and it just continued, you know. It gets sensitive ... that I don't think we
need to be racist against our people. Doesn't matter what color you are, we all
represent the community. And I think this conversation is good. We need to be
sensitive to everything. And if we're going to institute a three-minute testimony period
and then the testifier's allowed to go on for another two minutes or whatever but, you
know, to finish your last statements, that that looks ... there's inequity in that. So I
think if it's going to be three with one minute to end, then stick to it as close as
possible. Otherwise, people look at the Chair and say, you know, you're being
discriminatory. If you like what they're saying, you let them go on and on and, you
know, sometimes it's hard, but I think those are the kinds of sensitivities that we get,
you know, pushed up against.
CHAIR KING: Right. Thank you. And that's kind of the point of doing a training on this so
we can ask those questions when we go to the training. Because there's a fine line
between freedom of speech and telling somebody they can't say something and then
stopping them when, you know, they're violating... and we ... so I think it will behoove
all of us to ... 'cause I have questions about that. Like at what point do you stop them
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and are you infringing on free speech, you know, if there's no four-letter words or
anything, but there are words that are offensive to some people. So what is that fine
line. Member Kama?
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: When people come to testify, they testify on an issue. You're
going to talk about the issue, talk about the issue. But don't denigrate people because
you don't like the side that they're on regarding the issue; that's all I'm saying. And
that's what we all should know that. If you talk about the issue, they could talk about
the issue. We don't have a right to tell them what they can think or feel about issues,
but we do get to tell them that how they are portraying other people in this
Administration or in this County or in this building is inappropriate behavior. That's
their own personal opinion. They want to sue people, go ahead. But you don't have to
drag us into that conversation, and I don't like being part of those kinds of
conversations.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you, Member Kama. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. I just want to dovetail off that
conversation. And, you know, like what you had stated earlier, we have to find that
fme line between first amendment rights versus what is inappropriate, so I think that
training will certainly be helpful because I guess it's an issue of semantics. I'll use an
example, we've heard it in testimony say... a testifier saying, oh, someone from the
Administration or someone else is a liar. Now if they stated where this person lied to
me, it could kind of.. .it basically means the same thing, but it's more how you say it.
So as a Chair, I guess we have to learn to facilitate what is, you know, crossing the
line so to speak and what is not. So and even if someone makes a remark related to
race, it's how they say it. I mean someone may say, well this is how I feel about this
ethnicity, and no offense. So, you know, it's tough to gauge, it's a judgement call on
the floor so ...which is imperative for why we need the training and see what OIP or
whoever can give us some guidance on. 'Cause, yeah, I don't want to muzzle the
public, too, at the same time if they ... because this is a sanctuary for the public to
come and air their feelings as well. But at the same time, too, I think they need to be
educated. Maybe at the start of every meeting, we can say, these are the general
parameters as far as what's, you know, allowable in terms of what you're going to say
and your conduct and so forth. So but, yeah, I'm all for the training. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Great. Thank you. Member Paltin?
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: I just was thinking that's the point of the training, yeah,
because sometimes when you are seeing and they aren't listening, then they can give
you strategies or words or things to do, so thank you for the training. And I just
think, you know, a good strategy would be if the audience starts yelling, to stop that
from happening.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Vice-Chair Rawlins-Fernandez?
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VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ:
Mahala, Chair.
Okay.
So to echo what
Member Molina was saying, I think it's important that we ensure that our testifiers feel
safe and protected ...when they're speaking, not only in the gallery, but also from us
as Councilmembers. I see one testifier submitted written testimony from the KCA, you
know, talking about that specifically. So I just .. .I want to, you know, I mean it hasn't
happened a lot, and I think this is just one instance, and I think the Councilmembers
in general, you know, are respectful our, to those that come and testify, and that's
really important because without public participation this is not a democracy. So we
need to ensure that testifiers want to retum. I know that there was one other testifier
that e-mailed all of us saying that he felt so ashamed by one Councilmember that he
doesn't want to ever come back and testify, and I don't want our members of the
public to feel that way. I want to encourage people to come and testify and not
discourage them. So, I just wanted to make sure that's said. And then the discussion
about protecting, you know, specific people, you know, from slander, I understand
that. But, yeah, we have to be very, you know, careful not to violate anyone's first
amendment right to free speech. And when it's generalized, you know, Hawaii has a
very tragic history. So it's kind of understandable when people come and testify,
identifying parts of our history that they feel oppressed from and how we lost our land.
So it, yeah, we just have to, you know, be careful not to censure our community
members. And then a third thing I wanted to bring up is just I think, you know, I
understand the need for like enforcement of our rules; otherwise, why have them? I
guess I'm curious, and I don't know if Member Molina's going to continue working on
this or if we work on this together as a Council, but who decides ... how do we enforce
and who decides when rules are violated? So that I think in deciding, you know, if a
Member is going to be expelled from further deliberation, who decides if that Member
gets expelled, you know, is it just a majority vote or is it just the Chair of the meeting.
So, yeah, I mean I'm open to, you know, these ideas. I just want to make sure that
we're being fair and, yeah, fairness.
CHAIR KING: Right.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahala, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Mahala. Mr. Molina, do you want to make any comments about that? Is that
your intent to put that in here if you make a policy proposal? Like-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I may mean ...
CHAIR KING: --who makes those decisions where, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I think that's something we need to hash out on the floor
is like if, for example, if I think my colleague from Wailuku-! keep pointing to her-if I
say she's out of line on something and then if I feel she broke a rule, then how do we
go about this process? But that's what a future GET meeting, we11 have that
discussion. And again, what I put out here is just all what other councils have
memorialized in their council rules for punishment or. ..
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CHAIR KING: Yeah, no, I think it's really interesting-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: --'cause I've never seen this before, but the fact that other communities are
doing that. Member Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yes, Michael. .. no, but you have to stay afterschool. But anyway,
it's incumbent upon the presiding Chair to conduct the meeting properly and enforce
all the rules. It's the Chair's job to do that. Now, Mr. Molina, you can put this down.
If the Chair makes a call that you're not happy with, you can always appeal the
Chair's decision, yeah. So but you will need, you will need a second on that. So there
are ... between the Council Rules and parliamentary procedure, you know, there are
ways that we can keep order in a meeting. But it's also the responsibility... and
everybody on this Council has to take it. Understand that sometimes you got to be the
bad guy and you have to enforce the rules. So again, when you write down your
guidelines, please emphasize that because it's every Council Chair's job, every
Committee Chair's job to make sure there's order. And if there, you know, don't start
blaming other people 'cause it's your job and, you know, if you want to be the Chair,
then you have to accept the responsibility and the consequences. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Thank you, Member Lee. Any other comments on this issue? Mr. Molina ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. Just a quick follow up and I
want to make sure that, you know, every Councilmember provides input as to how we
want to carry out these rules for potential disciplinary action. And so I welcome all
input and then we can have a discussion at the appropriate time and then go forward
from there. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. And it was kind of a good start just to see what other councils are
doing. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, I would agree with Ms. Lee. I think most of the
concems is already covered either by our Rules or our agreement to use Robert's for
parliamentary procedure. So, I agree that in the end the body makes the final
determination on a call, especially those appealed to the Chair. The Chair would just
have no debate and go direct to a vote. So that's taken cared of. I will say, though,
and I'm going to be ... because it's about me, so 111 just bring it up. That meeting on
the Lanai issue, I did make my comments and I would defend Lanai always, the same
way. I can tell you, Mr. Kanahele and I had a discussion right after that and we were
okay. We both understood each other's comments and positions well. And so I would
say between Daniel, Mr. Kanahele-1 call him Daniel 'cause we're friends, in a sense
too--we're okay. We understand our positions and our statements that we gave on
that item. And for me, that's part of the interesting thing about this subject, he wasn't
offended but somebody else was offended, but that's the nature of our community
make up, we're that diverse that... that's how it goes sometimes, yeah.
So I
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appreciate the comment, Chair. But if anybody knows me, I've defended Lanai the
same way since 1978, and I'm not going to change.
CHAIR KING: Vice-Chair Rawlins-Femandez?
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahalo, Chair. I wanted to mahalo Member Hokama
for sharing with us that that issue was resolved. 'Cause I was actually going to ask,
you know, what happened after that situation and the other situation that the one
testifier e-mailed us about if there was any resolution.
But as, you know,
Member Hokama pointed out that although, you know, Mr. Kanahele himself may not
have been offended or, you know, was able to resolve it directly with Member Hokama,
if one of us, you know, treats a testifier that way and other people are watching, how
do we ensure that we're not discouraging those who are watching from coming here
because they see how others are treated.
And then they don't know that
Member Hokama and Mr. Kanahele spoke after, you know, off camera. They just saw
what they saw on Akaku. And there, you know, if. .. so if there's no way for those
who, you know, watched, you know, that discourse happen and, you know, they're
like, you know .. .I mean it's already intimidating for people to testify.
CHAIR KING: Right.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: I've stood there and testified and, you know, my knees
would shake; and it's nerve-racking. Public speaking is, you know, people are more
afraid of public speaking than dying. So, you know, it's really important that we make
it comfortable for them as much as possible even when we don't agree. Yeah, I don't
know. I just... so in the Rules, I don't know if, you know, we can ... or if maybe the
Chair, you know, if in recognizing that or if someone wants to make a motion or
something where, you know, if we allow our emotions, you know, to get the best of us
and, you know, it kind of, you know, presents itself a little, you know, more heated
than we would like if, you know, we, you know, can, I don't know, apologize, you
know, right then and there so that, you know, we are making that statement that, you
know, we're human so sometimes, you know, we do lose our composure. But to
ensure that the entire public sees that we also hold ourselves accountable and that we
really value public input and that we really want them to come and that we will, you
know, work our best to make sure that it's safe and inviting as much as possible.
Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Mahalo. Yeah, and I was going to bring that up, too, because I did see
Mr. Kanahele and Mr. Hokama having a conversation. I was really happy that it got
resolved, but the people watching didn't see that. And sometimes it's not even so
much what you say but the way you say it that can be intimidating so, and that's
what I think was being expressed in public with the one testifier and others who came
after. So I appreciate that, bringing that up, Mr. Hokama, and I just think that we
need to be cognizant of the piece that's going public that, you know, where they don't
see the whole picture. But I did talk to Daniel and he said, oh, yeah, we work it out,
we're friends. So we11 just kind of go from there. I think it's good to have these
discussions periodically, so we all remain self-aware and how we're coming across to
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the public as well. So if we can kind of push that on to Member Molina since he
started the research, that would be good. And it's going to go to your Committee
anyway.

PRE-SIGNED CERTIFICATES

CHAIR KING: So the next issue is just real quick, Pre-Signed Certificates. And the reason I
put this on here is because I was recently presented with a request to just authorize
pre-signed certificates. So when we do certificates for recognizing various events or
people or instances or projects and that we want to just take ... sometimes there isn't
time to get everybody's signature on it, and so Members will request my permission for
them to use pre-signed certificates. And I just want to make sure that, you know, it's
hard to just say, yeah, everybody's name could go on it without talking to everybody,
but the last time it happened there wasn't time; and I believe it was
Member Sugimura's request and so there wasn't time to talk to everybody or get
everybody in the Chambers to sign it. So I wanted to make sure that everybody's okay
with that.
They're generally, you know, supportive certificates, supportive of
some body's actions or of a project or something that's going on. So just kind of keep
that in mind if you have .. .if you have issues with having your name on something
without actually being contacted, you know, please let me know and then we can
make sure that I have a list of at least ... contact these people and make sure it's okay.
So that's all that one was. Anybody have any issues with that? Okay. I think it's a
fairly common practice. I wanted to make sure that there wasn't any problem.

PROPOSED NEW COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE
(VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ)

CHAIR KING: And then the next one, we have a--does anyone want to take a break before we
go on to the next one? Okay. I'm hoping we can get through these fairly quickly. But
the next one is a Proposed New Committee Meeting Schedule, and that is our
Vice-Chair Rawlins-Fernandez.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahalo, Chair. Okay. I made copies. Okay. So my
proposal is ... oh shoot, can someone give one to Chair King, too? Oh thanks, Traci .
. . .Okay. So this is the month of December. I know we already have the 2019
calendar that was published. But after Chair King sent the memo about us, you
know, we're not required, committees aren't required to have two meetings a month;
and if we wanted to consider only having one meeting a month, you know, that would
be, you know, encouraged. So I was thinking, with all the recessed meetings that
we've had, because three hours is not long enough for some of the more contentious
items that we've been taking up, that perhaps we can do like an ail-day meeting. So
and it doesn't have to be all-day, but you have the option to have it all-day. So the
9:00 meetings, you know, would be the first week and then the 1:30 meetings would
be the second week. So Multimodal would be on Monday from 9:00 to 4:30, you
know, of course with lunch. GET on Tuesday from 9:00 to 4:30. So that's the idea.
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That way we can get through our agendas without having to call a recess and
reschedule and come in on our off weeks or, you know, just scramble to try to figure
out how we can meet the deadline or, you know, whatever it is. So then that way each
committee has more time to work on their items and then our, you know, our staff, we
can focus on one meeting each month and also prepare for one meeting each day
instead of two meetings 'cause it's, yeah, it's a lot of work. Anyway, so you have before
you what it would look like if we wanted to move forward with this idea for December
and we could, you know, cancel the aftemoon meetings in the first week and cancel
the morning meetings in the second committee week. Mahala, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Thank you for that proposal, Vice-Chair. I'm not sure what the ... if we would
be ...would there be a problem with Sunshine since we've already published the whole
agenda for this entire year. So I was thinking like this proposal might start next year
since we haven't published the calendar for next year. But just from when our
Vice-Chair proposed this to me, and I know there's going to be discussion on pros and
cons, but one of the things I saw as a pro is that if you are a Councilmember and
you're not on one Committee and you have to come all the way in from the West side
or from Hana for the morning meeting, but you're not in the aftemoon meeting, this
would kind of, you know, you would only have to come in once. There would be one
committee report. So it could possibly cut down on the overtime that we're seeing at
OCS and it could streamline so that you could get all of your items in and you still
could ask for an additional meeting if you wanted to. So if you wanted to split it up
into two you could, but this would kind of give .. .I always felt that Councilmembers
felt that they had to have two meetings a month because it was on the schedule, but
there's really nothing in the Charter that requires that. So there's nothing that
requires this and there's nothing that requires that. What is I think our responsibility
is to give a calendar to the public so they know when to expect the meetings. So, you
know, if we adopt this, I would like to look at it for maybe the following year. And but
I, you know, I think I see some savings in overtime, I see some savings in trip time,
and the people that have to come and stay overnight. But I know there's other issues
with, you know, wanting to spread meetings out and other things that may come up
during the month. So I think it'll be a good discussion. Starting with our Pro Tern
TashaKama.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Thank you, Chair. So I just have one question and one
comment. One, because a lot of the 201 come to my Committee and they have a
45-day clock, this might not work. And also, what is creating the overtime for OCS?
CHAIR KING: That's kind of a long discussion, but I think it's a good discussion. So maybe,
Traci, if you could .. .if there's anything relative to the schedule that could address
overtime. But speak to what else is going on that is causing us all the overtime that
we've been talking about.
MS. FUJITA: So when I look at the overtime request forms, they're usually due to posting
requirements, you know, to meet posting deadlines. 'Cause I've already, as you know,
asked staff to, you know, try to minimize overtime as much as possible. But, you
know, if we need to get things drafted and posted, you know, we just have to do it. So
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usually when I see it it's to try to meet like legal deadlines. Sometimes it's to meet
Councilmember deadlines, you know, Councilmembers want certain things completed
by a certain time and so the staff will sometimes work overtime to get those things
done.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So, do we have deadlines that we need to meet so that you all
can meet your deadlines? Do we have those?
MS. FUJITA: I have asked staff to stay in close communication with the Members and their
offices regarding when it's ideal for staff to get like drafts and things, because there is,
you know, a lengthy process that usually comes after that. Sometimes things have to
go to Corp. Counsel for approval. So we just need to allow for enough time. So I'm
hoping that that's what's happening is that there is communication ... because it
really depends on the items, the documents involved. But there are ideal deadlines,
like more internal, you know, that we would like to have so that things can move
smoothly.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: So we have them? Does the Councilmembers all have that, that
they need to get their reports done or they need to get this done and so that they can
be giving it to you or whatever it is we need to do to hand off-MS. FUJITA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: --to you so that you can do it so that you can go and it ... there's
supposed to be this flow-MS. FUJITA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: --that's supposed to occur. So if you're doing overtime, that
means the flow's not occurring. So what needs to happen for the flow to get back on
track? I think that's what I'm asking.
MS. FUJITA: Well, yeah, I guess sometimes, you know, if meetings run late, for example,
then staff has to stay and finish, you know, what they need to get done. Or they need
to stay late to staff meetings. You know, so those kinds of things just can't be
avoided. But we do try, you know, to get, you know, documents drafted and, you
know, processed as early as possible to avoid overtime. So the deadlines that you're
referring to, they're not, you know, the same for everything.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Yeah.
MS. FUJITA: It kind of depends on the situation. So that's why I've asked the staff to stay in
close contact ...you know, for each document, each assignment, you know, when does
this need to be done by so that they can have some advanced notice of how best to
process it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KING: Thank you. That's one of the key issues that you brought up, was overtime.
And I think one of the things, too, that I understand from talking with Traci earlier is
that this Council is very active, very busy, we've been getting a lot of stuff done; but it
also has created almost twice as many PAFs by this time as the previous year. So
we've been giving them a lot more items to work on as well as the issues that you
brought up about the extra, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Well, maybe the issue for Councilmember Rawlins should be not
having us work a full day, but go from part-time to full-time.
CHAIR KING:
Yeah, I think we, you know, looking at the Charter, there isn't a
clear ... there's no designation of whether we are part-time or full-time. It's kind of up
to us. I feel like I'm full-time in this job. I think you feel that way, too, probably. I see
you around here a lot. But there's no requirement for us to be part-time or full-time.
It's pretty much up to each Councilmember what they vision. So, I mean if we wanted
to do that and put that into Charter, I don't know how we would even police that. We
would maybe punch a time clock or something. I don't know. It's kind of interesting
because our staff gets overtime, you know, camp time if they work over. OCS staff
gets camp time if they work over. Councilmembers have no, you know, we don't
have ...
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Our staff doesn't get overtime, right?
CHAIR KING: Well, my staff, if they work overtime, I give them camp time some other place,
right, so that they aren't, you know, if they work. ..
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Like flex-time.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, flex-time. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: 'Cause camp time is time and a half. ..
CHAIR KING: No, no, no, no. It's not .. .I'm sorry, I used the wrong term, you're right, it's
flex-time. But, for Councilmembers, we just work however long we have to work and
there's nobody to tell us, okay, now you can take two hours off on this day. We have
to kind of police that ourselves. So, yeah, that ... maybe that's an issue for a Charter
amendment. Member Paltin?
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Yeah, so for me, it would be cool if we could keep it more fluid,
but I guess if you have to make the calendar in advance. My concem would be kind of
the same as Member Kama, like to have one meeting a month, like I feel like my
meeting time is valuable and I don't want to give it up, but sometimes folks want
to ... they have other deadlines that they're working with in terms of like trying to get
the zoning done and like that. So I mean it could be cool like if Member Kama and I
just keep our Wednesdays split, split; and then maybe we can have discussions if
either of us know that we're taking on something that's going to run longer than three
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hours. 'Cause we did that one other time, that time when I took one whole day and
then she took the whole next day. So like, for me, I like the flexibility of having two
options to get something on there even though a lot of times I go over my three hours.
But people ask so much questions sometimes. And so I mean maybe we can be
flexible like that, like some people that want it all at once or they're not dealing so
much with deadlines, don't need two opportunities on the calendar and they just need
one, and then you can pair up with someone on the other side or something.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: And I don't know, too, if I think we have like three vacant
positions again, so that could factor into the overtime, too, because you can't be
expecting people to just take on more work and not.. .like when I was at the beach,
sometimes we only had one person and you have to still do the job of three people.
But in the office, that's not fair. Nobody's going to die.
CHAIR KING: And we do have those three positions-COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: --on the agenda for the 18th. So they're, you know, we've got ...yeah, we11 be
filling those soon.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Yeah. So that would be good.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Okay, thank you for those comments. Member Hokama, any
comments on the proposal? Just going to go down the line here.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's pretty tough, yeah. The main committees, Budget I would
say, should have at least twice a month 'cause there's a lot of amendments for Budget.
Mr. Molina just likes a lot of... to volunteer for a lot of tasks so he's going be always
busy twice a month. Ms. Lee has a wide parameter committee ... so infrastructure.
So, you know, again, Chair, I don't have a problem with what my colleague from
Molokai proposed. Again, I think maybe each Chair should go back and look at their
master calendar and look at the amount of items each committee has us already
assigned and see if this is a doable proposal to go once a month. For me, I could make
it work. Unfortunately, it's always interesting the phone call on the off week of what
people ask you to post, because maybe something happened over the weekend and all
of a sudden hits a nerve and then they want some quick venue for Council Committee
had to have a discussion. So that's what I'm learning with Parks, every weekend
somebody has a comment for me about Parks Department and why I'm not holding a
meeting on this subject or that, Chair. I mean Parks is a weekly thing for us. So,
again, I would say, I think it can work if we communicate well. I've already given slots
from my time to Ms. Sugimura and I forgot which other committee was that, maybe
Mr. Molina asked. So I don't have a problem, you know, trading off timeslots or giving
up timeslots when appropriate for other major committee requirements, Chair. Thank
you.
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CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Member Lee, do you have any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE:
You know, this proposal does seem very efficient, but
unfortunately my Committee is not exactly, you know, it doesn't cooperate. All the
issues don't cooperate with us, and we do need the flexibility 'cause we're working with
like three or four different departments ... so ... and we need flexibility.
If we
piggy-backed on the MT Committee, as we are now, it's working out fine for us. But if
there's a way for one committee to handle everything in one day once a month, I mean
I'm not opposed to that, yeah, if you could do that, yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you, Member Lee. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Madam Chair.
I just want to thank
Member Rawlins-Fernandez for this proposal ...you know, there's some merit to it.
But for my own Committee, Chairing the GET, because we deal with a lot of timesensitive stuff like, for example, proposed settlements from the County, any, you
know, lawsuits related to that, we're kind of at the mercy of the courts. They'll just tell
our County attorneys, okay, this is your court hearing date so if you want that date,
you better, you know, adhere to our rules. So that's why, you know, we get hit with
requests from Corporation Counsel to have a proposed settlement matter. And, you
know, I need basically the two meeting slots to deal with that as well as Boards and
Commissions, there's also time deadlines as well. If we don't meet that deadline, then
the Mayor's nominees are deemed approved if we cannot meet the deadline for that.
And then of course this is a year we're considering Charter amendments. I plan on
trying to get a head start on them, 'cause I anticipate there may be a number of
proposed Charter amendments from you and any, some of the other Members. So, I
just want to kind of throw that out there as to why, for me, I think it's necessary I
keep the normal two timeslots. Otherwise, if we go with this calendar, then I may be
making requests to Members about coming in during an off-week, especially if we have
some time-sensitive matters. So it's sort of a fluid situation like Member Paltin said at
least for maybe for her Committee and for mine's. So I just wanted to put that out
there. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Actually I was thinking, you know, since you have the
Charter amendments that you might want to just kind of like what we do with Budget
when we have like, you know, couple weeks of Budget meetings. You might want to
just like take a week and just take all the meetings and do Charter amendments and
then take a break after that, because there are I think, you know, there may be a lot of
Charter amendments coming through so and it's kind of hard to do this start and
stop, but, you know, I'm open to whatever special schedule you need to do on that,
too. So thank you. Member Sinenci?
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Thank you, Chair. I just had a question, would this be just
like for a month like this December, this would be just for December?
CHAIR KING: Member Rawlins-Fernandez?
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VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Sure, Chair. Where did my thing go? Oh. We can try
it in December and see if we like it. And if we like it, then it can be published in the
next year.
COUNCILMEMBER SINENCI: Okay. Thank you, Member Rawlins-Femandez. Yeah, I too
like the flexibility. I would be open maybe to a couple months where we can take this
schedule. I'm looking at maybe, you know, during either NACo or HSAC where we
might need additional time if we're going to conferences or something. I like the idea
that if we're doing policy changes, I know I don't ... for my Committee it's just been if
we're working on, you know, presenting new policies or getting everybody's consensus
on things, you know. My last meeting, we ran out of time so I wish if, you know, for
some things and looking at my personal schedule maybe we can kind of plan things,
say, hey, we're going to have all day working on this policy, so maybe we can actually
do a working laboratory for that day where everybody can come in and we can have
some really meaningful discussions versus just quick, you know decisions on the fly.
So I'm flexible, Chair, and could try it. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you. Back to Vice-Chair Rawlins-Femandez.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahala, Chair. So this is our published calendar. I
don't think we stuck to it at all. We actually had more meetings than what is listed,
because we only have three hours. So when we took up the 201H projects, when we
took up the confirmations, when we took up these really contentious issues, the three
hours was completely insufficient to address those issues, and that's why I'm
proposing something for like six hours then you don't have to work the entire day, you
have the option of having that six hours. And just like we did with this published
calendar, we can still work with the committee that's scheduled on the same day to do
a split, you know, week. So if PSLU and Affordable Housing want to continue to do
that, this didn't stop them from doing that before so this wouldn't stop them from
doing it into the future. And so just, you know, I think we're feeling like being
restricted and we didn't before ... we're, you know, we're flexible. As you mentioned,
with the Sunshine Law, I don't think. . .I thought I saw Traci shaking her head, but I
don't want to say something that she wasn't doing, but I don't believe that changing
December would be a violation of Sunshine Law, because it... we change our calendar
all the time. We change our schedule all the time. We have special meetings on the
off weeks. We had EACP on Monday and that's not on this calendar. So, Traci, of
course please correct me if I'm wrong, but the meetings are there, it would just be
canceled. I don't know. Traci, do you want to correct me if I'm wrong?
CHAIR KING: You want to comment on that?
MS. FUJITA: So, yeah, it wouldn't be an issue with the Sunshine Law.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
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MS. FUJITA: And in fact the calendar does say at the bottom that meeting dates are subject
to change or cancellation.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
MS. FUJITA: And to go ... and it refers to go to our website for specific agendas.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Okay, thank you for that.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Chair? And then so December, as I understand it, is a
slower week. So I think December would be a good time to test out the new schedule.
Oh, are we losing quorum? No, we have quorum. Okay, good. Okay. Yeah so, you
know, we can test it out in December. I feel like I would actually get more work done.
You know, the committees post, you know, like maybe about between two to four
things on each agenda because they only have four hours ... three hours. You know, I
try to squeeze as much as I can and, you know, just try to move Members along in
discussion. And I feel like I could, you know, get ten things done in a six hour
meeting and I would just, you know, encourage Members to move along with the
discussion so we can get each item done. And I would really be able to move a lot of
things off my master agenda. And, you know, looking forward to the proposed Charter
amendments, I think, you know, a six hour time, you know, would be better for us to
cover a lot more ground. And again, you know, if we need to schedule special
meetings because there are deadlines, we've done it before. We can do it within the
calendar. So if there are deadlines for Boards and Commissions or settlements, then,
you know, a special meeting can be held on the Tuesday or another day if that works
for everyone on the off week. So this .. .I feel that this proposed calendar would
actually give us more flexibility than what the previous calendar gave us and would
allow our staff to be more focused on the committee weeks, because then, you know,
we would just focus on the one committee that would be meeting that day instead of
the two things and be scrambling to prepare for two committee meetings in the one
day. Mahala, Chair.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you. Good point. Member Paltin, you had another comment?
Did I see .. .I thought I saw you raise your hand. Oh. It's okay, you don't have to.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: .. .(Inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KING: Okay. Member Kama, did you ... no? Okay. Anybody else have any more
thoughts. So I like the idea. I mean I really like the idea thinking outside the box. I
think this is, you know, we need to just kind of do more this type of thinking and I like
the idea that you're proposing it as kind of a test subject in the month of December.
But, you know, we11 just... how .. .I guess I could just ask if there's some more
comments, if there's by show of hands, how many people want to try this in
December? Raise your hand. You want to try it?
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Just going to try it, Members.
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CHAIR KING: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: It's not going to be permanent.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Well, we don't have enough support for it. Are you raising your hand or
not? So maybe we can, maybe we can bring this back again at the next Chair's
meeting and see, you know, if there's, you know .. .it's, it's kind of a lot and maybe it's
a lot to think about, making a decision on right now. I like it because, you know,
selfishly then I, like you said, I could focus on one committee meeting. I can come in,
I have some days where I have one committee meeting and then the other one I'm not
a Member of, and so I always think I'm going to go to the not ... the meeting that I'm
not a Member of, but then I get my day filled up with other, with other meetings of
constituents. So it might give me an opportunity to set aside part of the day for those
two meetings that I'm not a Member of. But anyway we'll. .. since we don't have full
support to move ahead, we'll just kind of maybe keep chewing on this and maybe you
can bring it back to the next ... Vice-Chair Rawlins-Fernandez?
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: And if the biggest concern for Affordable Housing is
the 201H project, I thought my understanding was that it doesn't come to the Council
until we have a clear pathway to ensure that the 45-day clock will be met within that
time. And if that understanding is incorrect, please correct me. And in the last
meeting I did give up two of my hours of my three hours for EDB so that we could
conclude our meeting on the 201H project.
CHAIR KING: So, yeah, I had a thought. If the Members who want to try this could arrange
the schedule, you know, just whoever, whatever, if you want to do this on Thursday,
December 5th, whoever would normally have the second half of that day, if you could
arrange to, you know, trade them for your other. .. another day or something. And if
you want to try it yourselves, if there's a way you can work it out with other
Councilmembers, those who want to try the one day for the month of December, you
know, I'm very open to that if you can arrange the other person's schedule who's on
the same day. And then, you know, then we'll have some actual results from how that
worked. So maybe we can kind of leave it at that, and if it does, we'll publish, you
know, we'll publish a new calendar for December. Okay.
MASS MAILINGS - INTERNAL POLICY

CHAIR KING: So, okay, moving on, Mass Mailings. So you all have this policy on mass
mailings, which is an internal policy. I'm not sure why this is .. .is this the one that
you presented, Traci, municipal mass mailings? Is that our internal one that you're
working on? Okay. So this came up because we had, you know, when we were kind
of had somebody who was making a lot of copies in the, in the ... with the central
copier machine and some people were .. .I got some complaints in the OCS and other
Councilmembers that they were waiting a long time. But when I started looking at the
number of copies that different, you know, you have to punch your name in when
you ... your number in when you make copies for your office and there was kind of a
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disparity between one being up to 27,000 last time I saw copies made ... and then the
next highest one was 3,000 something. So we just try to create this mass mailing and
it's okay if you want to do a mass mailing, but I think your office needs to pay for the
cost of that, because right now the central office ... the central account is covering the
cost of the paper and the printing for anybody who uses that central area. So we
made this policy on mass mailings. And we thought it was a good time also to talk
about what the content should be for mass mailings given that we have another
election corning up, and so we all have to be cognizant that we're not putting .. .if we're
doing newsletters out of our office that we're not putting, you know, statements in
there that can be misconstrued as electioneering or campaigning, but certainly if it
comes out of central. So, I want to, I want to not have to do a hard number on
what. .. on the number of copies we can make, 'cause it's really varied. Some of our
offices do very little and some of them do a lot. But when you get up to 27,000, that
should probably be ... and that's, you know, two or three quarterly newsletters and
that should probably come out of the individual Councilrnernber's office.
Member Paltin?
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: I just was wondering, under number three, it doesn't list
e-rnails. Is it only because of the supplies being used that it's considered it if you were
to send out like a mass e-mail that's not.. .is that still considered mass mailing?
CHAIR KING: Well, we ... yeah, I think that is considered mass mailing. That's more of a,
probably a campaign issue than a cost issue. You know, we're looking at supplies that
could run in the thousands if everybody did, you know, 30,000 copies.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Like say you did a mass e-mail to people on your e-mail list
about like a broken waterline or something-CHAIR KING: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: --is that a mass mailing still, for this purposes?
CHAIR KING: Well that's ... yeah, I mean maybe Traci could speak to that as far as e-rnails,
because my office sends out e-mail newsletters.
MS. FUJITA: Sorry, I'm just kind of checking with Alison 'cause she helped with this
assignment. I don't believe e-rnails were included.
MS. STEWART: .. .(Inaudible) ...
MS. FUJITA: Oh, okay. Oh, that's right, that's right. So we're looking at doing a
social... sorry, a separate e-mail, social media policy that would cover that type of
situation.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Oh, yeah, 'cause I have a Facebook that's my Councilrnernber
one and then I have a Face book that's my campaign one, and the two are separate. So
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if you put stuff out on your Councilmember Facebook, there's no guidelines at this
time?
MS. FUJITA: Yeah, I don't believe we have anything right now, so it's something that's on
our to-do list.
CHAIR KING: There were guidelines given out when we had the OIP training. I think I was
probably the only Councilmember that came and some of you had your staff come.
But they did discuss OIP... OIP discussed Face book issues with candidates. And one
of the things that they said was you can't .. .if there's a discussion about an issue, if
you get on there as a Councilmember and you make a comment knowing that other
Councilmembers are getting on there, that could be considered serial communication.
So they advised us to refrain from commenting on Facebook pages on issues because
we don't know who else is getting on there.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: So like if they call you out, just direct message, and then you're
safe?
CHAIR KING: I don't know if that's ...
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: 'Cause guys kind of like tag you on their issues and we might
be voting. And then it looks like you're non-responsive and they're all like, oh,
non -responsive. . .. (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KING: .. . (chuckle) . .. Yeah, I think. . .I mean I asked that question about, you know,
what if we don't know if someone else is on there? They said that it's safer just to not
comment; that's what their answer to me was. So, you know, it's your own decision if
you want to make a comment or not. And if you ...
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: And then is it separate if like say... so I have a campaign social
media, I have a Council social media, and then I have a personal social media. And so
when you're talking about making a comment, you're making it from the
Councilmember social media and not the personal social media or it doesn't matter?
CHAIR KING: It doesn't matter, according to OIP it doesn't matter, you're a Councilmember
so everything gets considered ... every comment you make gets considered that you're
making as a Councilmember. So I tried that, too, because I have two different
Facebook pages, too. I have a personal one and a Councilmember one. But it doesn't
matter to OIP.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Good to know.
CHAIR KING: Yeah. It was a good workshop. But again, they were not ... they didn't ... we
didn't get that in writing, we just got that in verbal, verbalization so they're kind of
wishy-washy on some things as well. So anyway that's what that was about. So if
there's no other comments on that, we can move on.

- 49-

COUNCIL CHAIR'S MEETING
Council of the County of Maul

October 11, 2019

UPDATE ON COUNCIL OFFICES PREPARING COMMITTEE NOTES AND REPORTS

CHAIR KING: The update was on .. .I just put that on there because we said we were going
to revisit this issue from the last... so I just wanted to find out where everybody was
at. Councilmember Kama has graciously been the first one to step up and say, we'll
do our own committee reports to take some of the burden off of OCS. And so I just
thought, does anybody else have any thoughts on doing their own notes or committee
reports? Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. And sorry to be a pain about
this, but as I stated at the last Council [sic] meeting, you know, I'll speak for my EAs,
they have a lot of stuff to do. You know, constituents call for this and that and then,
you know, I will sometimes call them and then say, hey you know what, I was just out
here in Makawao and somebody complained about a pothole, can you follow up with
Public Works? You know, the OCS staff, you know, they live and breathe the
Committee items, they research, they formulate the item, so they have a
better. .. deeper knowledge about the Committee items. So it's there with them. And
ironically, my analyst, she does a wonderful job with the notes that she has been
providing to me. So to me, I would prefer that this be left up to the Members if they
want their analysts to do their notes or their EAs.
But and again, it says
nowhere ... since we're talking about rules, nowhere in the rules does it say that the
Chair or any Member of the Council can assign duties to another Member's staff. And
there was that August 1, 2019 memo from Corp. Counsel that states the authority to
direct EAs is left to the sole discretion of the individual Councilmember who employs
the EA. So that is my.. .I guess to summarize everything, leave it to the Member to
decide whether they want their analyst to do the notes or their EA staff. But, in my
case, you know, I keep my EAs real busy and sometimes I drive them nuts. But I
want to ensure that their primary focus is to respond to the public with any concerns
they have, to do outreach with the public first, answer the phone calls, respond to the
e-mails, and contact the directors for any issues that arise. And with the OCS staff,
because they're so ingrained with the Committee item itself, they have more .. .I don't
want to call it accessibility, but a lot more deeper knowledge than the EAs would likely
have; so that's why I would like to just keep it .. .leave it to the Member to decide
whether he or she wants their EAs to do their notes or have the Office of Council
Services staff. So that's my spiel on that, Madam Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Thank you. Member Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE:
report?

Madam Chair, are you talking about doing an actual committee

CHAIR KING: Well, I just put that on there because we did hear from Member Kama that her
office is going to start doing their own committee reports.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Oh. You want to do ours, too? Oh, no.
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COUNCILMEMBERS: ... (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KING: She left before you could ask her that question. . . .(chuckle) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay. As far as I'm concerned, you know, we're doing the notes
already, but we can't do the reports, that's too much.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, no, we weren't asking you to.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: I just thought if she wanted to make a comment about, you know, whether it
was working for her or not, that we could find out. But, no, I don't think that OCS is
asking anyone to do committee reports.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KING: That was just a voluntary step on Member Kama's part.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay, alright.
CHAIR KING: And so you are doing your own notes?
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Yes.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Vice-Chair Rawlins- Fernandez?
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Mahalo, Chair. Mahalo for that clarification, 'cause I
thought at the last Committee [sic] meeting it was only about the notes.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, it's only about-VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: --it's .. .I mean the question was only about notes. I only put that on there
because we had another issue of committee reports.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Okay. 'Cause I think. . .I mean my office may be open
to doing reports if our office budget can be increased. So if the Council is open to
giving our offices more money to take on both the notes and the reports, then I could
be supportive of that.
CHAIR KING: Okay. Well, I don't really .. .I mean I don't think the OCS ...
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: I mean that's not for discussion right now.
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CHAIR KING: No, I don't think OCS wants, wants you ... wants Members to do committee
reports. We just had a voluntary... we had a letter from Member Kama saying that
her office would be doing them and so I want.. .I just... that's why I stuck it on here
because I didn't know if anybody else was looking at doing them. But, no, it
wasn't... that wasn't a request that came from OCS. So but let's kind of focus on the
notes. So we have one Member who wants to continue OCS doing it, one Member
whose office is doing it now. Just kind of wanted to get a feel. I mean we can just go
ahead and leave it where it's up to every Councilmember, whether they want to do
their own notes. This came up originally because it was brought up in the previous
term that the first six months OCS would do our notes and then we would take it over
after that, you know, especially for those of us who are new and didn't know how to do
it. So that was considered a common practice to eventually take it over under the
Councilmember staff. But I think some people got comfortable ... some of us got
comfortable with OCS doing it and some of us, you know, didn't ... are open to doing
our own notes. So that's kind of why it came up in the first place. So any other
comments on it? Member Paltin?
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: So the notes is just kind of bullet points and options and kind
of follows to how the committee report is going to be written like when they take up
the research on the subject. So I mean I think that if I were to write my own notes,
they would hate it because it's not organized the way that it should be organized, the
way the committee report is going to read, you know, then I might jump around to
whatever way I go and lose the structure of how they need to write the reports and the
logic of leading the discussion in a certain way. I'm not that good at the parliamentary
procedure 'cause it's like just the book with all these words and it doesn't mean
anything. So, to me, I think it would be easier for my staff if they continue to do that
bullet point and then they can write the committee report from how I run the meeting
towards their guidance of, you know, that. Otherwise, I might jump around a lot and
if I did it myself, which I mean can try it but I pretty much guarantee they're not going
to like the way I do it.
CHAIR KING: No, and ...well, yeah, and I think the notes I think that was ... includes like
the notes that we have when we're, you know, when we're addressing an item on the
agenda, you know, like when I call a communication and then I call on you to make a
motion on it or move to file it or something like that. So you have those notes that
OCS does for you, right?
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Yeah, well yeah.
CHAIR KING: Yeah. So those would ... those are specific notes and then there's the notes for
the Committee. And so are you talking about both of those types of notes, Traci?
MS. FUJITA: Yeah, my understanding was that. .. and like I think we discussed at the last
meeting that this has been, you know, something that's discussed I think every term.
But initially the staff is tasked with drafting these notes because the Members are new
and it helps them, you know, with the meeting. So we're talking about notes at the
Council meeting as well as notes at the Committee meeting. So we were just... the
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staff was just wondering, 'cause normally it's an initial period of, you know, six
months or so. But so we were just wondering if we were continuing or if we were, you
know, stopping. So I mean that was it. I mean if Members want us to-CHAIR KING: But were you talking about the notes for the Committee Chair, you know,
when you chair a Committee, 'cause I think that's one of the things that Member-COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Script.
CHAIR KING: Yeah, the script, thank you. Or were you talking about the notes that you give
to individual Councilmembers when they are going to respond to something at a full
Council meeting and either make a motion or describe it. There's notes that
describing certain items.
MS. FUJITA: Yeah, I think they're both.
CHAIR KING: Both?
MS. FUJITA: Yeah, we just needed direction on whether we were going to continue them or
not.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
MS. FUJITA: That was the discussion from the last meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Yeah, so to me, if you want it more smooth and less errors, I
would continue it. 'Cause I don't know all the ins and outs of zoning and land use and
all that kind of stuff. So I mean I can wing it, but I think for the good of everyone
involved, it's better to continue the way it's going right now.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PALTIN: Save time, save hassle. 'Cause like say I wrote my own notes
and then I get it wrong and then we have to spend time correcting it and you only got
three hours or six hours, and I guess I feel like if it's not broken don't fix it.
CHAIR KING: Okay. I'm going to go down to Member Kama because I'm really curious to see
how it's working out for you doing your own committee reports ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: Well, when I came, I was told that we would be given a script to
read when we first started and that what Maria told me was, maybe after a couple of
months you might want to learn it on your own so that you're not dependent upon us
for the script. And I said, okay, but I still use the script, I just put in different things
with what is relevant to the meeting of the day. And then we take our own notes and
so the ... so when we're getting them and I was reading the committee reports at the
Council meeting to report out, sometimes I felt like, well maybe they left something out
of... but was okay. But, you know, when I do my reports just to you guys about
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events I go, they're very detailed, yeah, because I think it's important to do that. So
when the issue came up the first time, I thought, oh my God. I didn't want to do it
then 'cause it was like too soon. But, you know, after being here for like seven
months, I thought, we wanted to learn how to do something different; so we asked if
we could actually do our own reports and so we do them now. But we had to meet
with Traci and David to help us to work through a template and then so what we do
now is, after each of the Committee meetings of the Housing, Evan transcribes all of
his notes, he sends it over to Alison who reviews it if it's okay, and she sends it back to
me says, it's okay, then she sends it on to Stacey, and then Stacey tums them into
minutes, and then it comes back again for my approval in the end. But and then you
get it on the Council floor. So we've been doing it for the past couple of meetings
already, only because my staff wanted to learn a little bit more of how things actually
work and for them they wanted the experience. And I think that it's good for them to
learn ... that the more they can leam, the better for them, the more well-informed, the
more knowledge they have. It's better for them to do those things. So that's why we're
doing it.
CHAIR KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: I like it.
CHAIR KING: You like it? Okay. I'm just wondering 'cause it's the first time I've heard of a
Councilmember doing your own committee reports. So, I really appreciate the fact
that you're trying to save OCS some of the overtime, so thanks for doing that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: We love Alison.
CHAIR KING: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAMA: We want her to stay healthy and strong.
CHAIR KING: .. . (chuckle). . .
Member Lee?

We do, too.

Okay, great.

Thank you for that input.

COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Madam Chair, this is kind of related but not exactly spelled out on
the agenda. But regarding our allocation for office, when do we get to discuss
reviewing that again? I mean there may be a need to increase that allocation, you
know, as we talk about all the various duties of the Executive Assistants and, you
know, it seems that we do a tremendous .. .it appears that we ... that the volume has
increased in terms of work. And so, therefore, their work has increased a lot. So
when do we get to talk about that?
CHAIR KING: Well that's coming up in ... because we're kind of pre-Budget right now, so
we're going to be talking about that before the next Budget. So we can actually put
that topic on the EDB Committee meeting, you know, maybe bring it up. If you want
to write it .. .I mean I can put it on the next agenda. Oh, I can't now, it's past noon.
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VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: I think I have an umbrella item.
CHAIR KING: But we could put it ...
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: I have an umbrella item, yeah.
CHAIR KING: What's that?
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: I have an umbrella item.
CHAIR KING: Oh, you do? Okay. So you could put it on your agenda-VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: --to discuss the Councilmembers' office budgets. Can she do that with ...
MS. FUJITA: Are you talking about FY '21 or FY '20?
CHAIR KING: '21.
MS. FUJITA: Oh, '21.
CHAIR KING: Yeah.
MS. FUJITA: I don't know. Is there an umbrella item for FY '21? I don't know.
CHAIR KING: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ: Not yet.
MS. FUJITA: Okay.
CHAIR KING: You could discuss it under... well ...
MS. FUJITA: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: --no, we can't discuss budget amendments for ourselves, right? It has to come
from the Mayor or can we put a budget amendment?
MS. FUJITA: In fact we talked about having Councilmembers review their proposed budgets
earlier than before.
CHAIR KING: But I mean if we were going to discuss it for the current budget ...
MS. FUJITA: Oh, for ...
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CHAIR KING: ... we would have to find the money somewhere to put it if we wanted to
increase it.
MS. FUJITA: Oh yeah, yeah.
CHAIR KING: So I think we're talking about 2021.
MS. FUJITA: Yeah.
CHAIR KING: But so we can put that item on the next Council agenda to be referred to EDB,
and then we can have that discussion in EDB about our own upcoming budget.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Well, I mean I don't think it'll hurt putting it on as soon as possible
for this current fiscal year. You know, we can always discuss this with the Mayor's
Office to see next time he submits another amendment to the budget, we can just tack
on this one.
CHAIR KING: Okay ...
VICE-CHAIR RAWLINS-FERNANDEZ:
Would someone be able to explain our budget
amendment process, because the Mayor doesn't have to .. .I'm sorry, I spoke out of
tum, but it wouldn't (inaudible) the process for us.
CHAIR KING: But, well, the budget amendment process, my understanding, is that once we
approve the budget, the budget amendments have to come from the Mayor. Is that
correct?
MS. FUJITA: We can initiate changes to-CHAIR KING: Our own?
MS. FUJITA:
--Council can initiate changes to their Operating Budget, but it's the
certification of additional revenue, if you're looking to increase the amount of
appropriation in the Council's budget, then that maybe something that ... I'm not sure
how that would work.
CHAIR KING: So if we want-COUNCILMEMBER LEE: I was just assuming you didn't have additional funds, but if you
do, then we don't have to go through the whole budgetary process amendment.
CHAIR KING: Well, we have money in different pots, you know, we have like money in our
audit account and we have money in operations and in personnel. So we would be
taking out of some other account and putting it in if we want.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: Okay.
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CHAIR KING: I mean we could have that discussion and talk. .. if we know what levels we're
talking about increasing it, then we can have that discussion and see if there's some
money that we want to move over. But we have a lot of audits coming up, too, so I
would want to know ahead of time what we're talking about as far as incurring
expenses. But I'm open to having that discussion. Because in the past, the raises,
the increases in budgets have kind of been held to a certain percentage, and so but,
you know, just this Council I think is willing to look at things outside the box and not
just follow what we've always done in the past. So it's kind of one of the exciting
things about our last Budget Session. So, you know, we can certainly have that
discussion, yeah. Okay.

2019 HOLIDAY PARTY

CHAIR KING: And okay, so the last thing on the agenda is the holiday party and my office
was, you know, OCS really wants ... we do this usually for OCS and for the Clerk's
Office and try to get everyone together. And in the past, it's always been the
Vice-Chair that's put it together. And so we .. .I don't want to put that on you, but we
started the ball rolling, but we understand why the Chair has never done it before
because it is a lot of work, too, to get this together. We did secure a place that could
work that, you know, we got a date and a time, but we realized that we ... there's so
much going on right now that we don't have the capacity and that's probably why the
Vice-Chair always did it in the past. But I know you're really busy because you've got
Budget corning up. So I just kind of wanted to throw it out there and see if anybody's
willing to pick up the ball and run with it.
COUNCILMEMBER LEE: I will.
CHAIR KING: Yay, I was hoping it would be you. . . .(chuckle). . . Okay. Turned over to
Ms. Lee's Office and 111 get you all where we're at and you can decide if you want to
keep it at the same place and time or it changes. All up .. .it would be up to you.
Okay. Awesome. Thank you. That's the last item on the agenda. Rayna?
MS. YAP: Just wanted to ask when Members and Staff can expect that Civil Beat report or
article?
CHAIR KING: Oh. We can get that to you today. It was actually an .. .I think it was a letter
that came to me, and they .. .it was on the, you know, the deadlines that we're not
meeting on postings report for the Council that the ... they said the Clerk's Office isn't
meeting the, whatever the required deadlines are, 90 days or something. And so I
think they sent it to myself and I think Clerk's Office got it. Josiah, did you get that
report, that letter from Civil Beat? You want to speak to it? They were ... and they
specified they weren't making an official complaint, they were just notifying us that we
may be missing some deadlines. So, can you talk about that?
MR. N!SHITA: Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. Yeah, I just saw that this morning.
It's relating to .. .I think it mentioned the specific Council meetings and a couple of
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EDB meetings where draft minutes weren't posted within the 40-day timeframe. So
not that minutes aren't done or that they're not-CHAIR KING: Right.
MR. NISHITA: --provided to the public, but that draft minutes and whatever stage that
they're at was not online within the 40-day timeframe. So we'll take appropriate
action to make sure that that's the case and I'm sure, you know, Traci will do the
same. But that was the substance of the, the letter.
CHAIR KING: Okay. And it seemed like they were just, you know, trying to be helpful. They
weren't, it wasn't punitive and it wasn't accusing.
MR. NISHITA: Yeah, it was kind of an FYI to provide assistance to all Boards and
Commissions. They've been trying to monitor things daily-CHAIR KING: Oh, okay.
MR. NISHITA: --to make sure that with the new implementation of the law that just Boards
and Commissions are aware of certain ...
CHAIR KING: Okay. So we're just one of the, one of the people. Okay. Thank you for taking
care of that, I appreciate that. Then if you can ... can you get that letter to Rayna at
OCS? Okay.
I think that's it then. Any other questions or comments? We got a lot done. Thank
you for staying over. And I'm going to .. .I'll try to keep this going like on at least a
quarterly basis. I don't know if I can do it every month 'cause I didn't get a good feel
that everybody wants to have one every month. But we'll see if we can do it more
often, make them shorter, that might be better, too. Okay. Thank you, everybody.
This meeting's adjoumed, 12:45. . . .(gavel) . ..
ADJOURN:

12:45 p.m.

APPROVED:

...,

KELLYT.KiN
Council Chair
Transcribed by: Rayna Yap and Tammy M. Frias

chr:min:19101l:tmf

-58-

